Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012

(Dollars in millions except per share amounts
and shares in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES $ 4,51¢ 4,571 13,55 13,79:

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiei and

amortization) 1,91¢ 1,94: 5,58 5,73
Selling, general and administrative 1,045 74¢ 2,67¢ 2,45¢
Depreciation and amortization 1,13¢ 1,14¢ 3,37¢ 3,56(
Impairment of goodwill (Note 2) 1,10¢ — 1,10C —
Total operating expenses 5,20( 3,83¢ 12,74: 11,74¢
OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME (685) 73€ 81z 2,043
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense (329 (326 (970 (1,009
Net loss on early retirement of debt — — — (199
Other income 9 12 52 27
Total other income (expense) (320 (319 (91¢) (2,170
(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE (1,00%) 422 (10€) 87¢
Income tax expense 40 152 37z 33z
NET (LOSS) INCOME $ (1,045 27C (47¢) 544
BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS PER COMMONM
SHARE
BASIC $ (1.7€) Az (0.79 .88
DILUTED $ (1.76) Az (0.79) .87
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE $ .54 72t 1.62 2.17¢

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING

BASIC 594,58 621,14 606,10: 619,74
DILUTED 594,58° 623,29¢ 606,10: 621,82¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) IIOBIE
(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
NET (LOSS) INCOME $ (1,045 27C (478 544
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME:
Items related to employee benefit plans:
Change in net actuarial loss, net of $(8), $(3),
$(25), and $(9) tax 13 4 40 14
Change in net prior service credit, net of $—,
$(1), $(1), and $(1) tax 1 2 2 2
Auction rate securities marked to market, net of $—
, $—, $—, and $(2) tax — — — 3
Foreign currency translation adjustment and ot
net of $—, $—, $—, and $- tax 13 8 @ 9
Other comprehensive income 27 14 41 28
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME $ (1,01%) 284 (437) 572

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $151 an@$15
Income tax receivable
Deferred income taxes, net
Other
Total current assets
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment
GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill

CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(UNAUDITED)

Customer relationships, less accumulated amoxizati $3,370 and $2,524

Other intangible assets, less accumulated amaaizaf $1,290 and $986

Other
Total goodwill and other assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Salaries and benefits
Income and other taxes
Interest
Other
Advance billings and customer deposits
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxes, net
Benefit plan obligations, net
Other
Total deferred credits and other liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 9)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock—non-redeemable, $25.00 par valikpazed 2,000 shares, issued and outstanding 7 ahares
Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 1,600¢0@01,600,000 shares, issued and outstanding®@antl

625,658 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
(Accumulated Deficit) Retained earnings
Total stockholders' equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012

(Dollars in millions
and shares in thousands)

$ 26¢€ 211
1,911 1,917

6€ 42

1,00 891

562 552

3,81¢ 3,61¢

33,72 31,93

(15,059 (13,029

18,66t 18,90¢

20,63" 21,73:

6,20¢ 7,05:

1,84: 1,91¢

82z 79¢

29,50° 31,49¢

$ 51,08 54,02(
$ 191 1,20¢
1,15¢ 1,207

67¢ 682

397 35€

35E 26¢

49¢ 234

70C 642

3,97¢ 4,59t

20,39: 19,40(

4,12t 3,64¢

5,48¢ 5,844

1,28¢ 1,24¢

10,90 10,73¢

593 62€

17,95 19,07¢

(1,660) (1,709

(179 1,28¢

16,71 19,28¢

$ 51,08 54,02(




See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2013

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Dollars in millions)

Net (loss) income $ (47¢) 544
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to reshcprovided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,37¢ 3,56(
Impairment of goodwill (Note 2) 1,10C —
Deferred income taxes 34¢ 26C
Provision for uncollectible accounts 111 144
Gain on sale of intangible assets 32 —
Long-term debt premium amortization (45) (72)
Net loss on early retirement of debt — 194
Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable (10%) (13€)
Accounts payable — 48
Accrued income and other taxes 30 65
Other current assets and other current liabilities, 303 134
Retirement benefits (28¢) (79
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities, 61 91
Other, net 27 32
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,40¢ 4,68¢
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment andai@#ed software (2,21)) (2,029
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets or property 75 13z
Other, net 19 28
Net cash used in investing activities (2,119 (1,869
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 1,74C 3,36:
Payments of long-term debt (1,169 (4,529
Early retirement of debt costs — (3249
Net payments on credit facility (620 3
Dividends paid (98€) (1,357
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 54 91
Repurchase of common stock (1,252 (20
Other, net ©) 14
Net cash used in financing activities (2,236 (2,759
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casia&mnts — 2
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 55 66
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 211 12¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 26¢€ 194
Supplemental cash flow information:
Income taxes (paid), net $ (45) (59
Interest (paid) (net of capitalized interest of $80 $33) $ (915) (997)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(UNAUDITED)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2013 2012

(Dollars in millions)
COMMON STOCK

Balance at beginning of period $ 62€ 61¢
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit plans 2 5
Repurchase of common stock (35 —
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdings — (1)
Balance at end of period 59¢ 623
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of period 19,07¢ 18,90:
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit plans 50 86
Repurchase of common stock (1,219 —
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdings (16) a7
Share-based compensation and other, net 60 82
Balance at end of period 17,95« 19,05:
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)
Balance at beginning of period (1,70)) (1,012
Other comprehensive income 41 28
Balance at end of period (1,660 (984)
(ACCUMULATED DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of period 1,28¢ 2,31¢
Net (loss) income (47¢) 544
Dividends declared (980 (1,357
Balance at end of period 173 1,50¢
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 16,71« 20,197

See accompanying notes to consolidated financstsients.
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencesin this report to " CenturyLink,
consolidated subsidiaries.

we," "us' and "our" refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and its

(1) Basis of Presentation

We are an integrated communications company engag@arily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@dumunications services include local and longatlise, network access, private line
(including special access), public access, broadibdata, managed hosting (including cloud hostiaglpcation, wireless and video services
certain local and regional markets, we also prolédal access and fiber transport services to ctithgelocal exchange carriers and security
monitoring.

Our consolidated balance sheet as of Decembe032, 2which was derived from our audited consoéddtnancial statements, and our
unaudited interim consolidated financial statem@ntwided herein have been prepared in accordaithelve instructions for Form 10-Q.
Certain information and footnote disclosures nolyniakcluded in financial statements prepared inoadance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amen@mae been condensed or omitted pursuant to rutbsegulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC"); however, in our opinihe disclosures made are adequate to makeftirenation presented not misleading.
We believe that these consolidated financial statéminclude all normal recurring adjustments nemgsto fairly present the results for the
interim periods. The consolidated results of openatfor the first nine months of the year aremetessarily indicative of the consolidated
results of operations that might be expected ferdhtire year. These consolidated financial statésrehould be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and tesrthereto included in our Annual Report on F&f¥K for the year ended December 31,
2012.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade our accounts and the accounts of our sigvid over which we exercise
control. All intercompany amounts and transactiaith our consolidated subsidiaries have been ehteid.

To simplify the overall presentation of our condaltied financial statements, we report immateriadamts attributable to noncontrolling
interests in certain of our subsidiaries as follof)sncome attributable to noncontrolling intetes other income (expense), (ii) equity
attributable to noncontrolling interests in additb paid-in capital and (iii) cash flows attribukalbio noncontrolling interests in other financing
activities.

We have reclassified certain prior year balancetshmounts presented in our Annual Report on Fd+K for the year ended December
31, 2012 to conform to the current period pres@tiaSpecifically, we have reclassified $123 millim software development costs, net of $3(
million in accumulated amortization, from propenyant and equipment to other intangibles assetsuorwonsolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2012.

We also have reclassified certain other prior geamounts to conform to the current period presemtaincluding the categorization of
our segment reporting. See Note 8—Segment Infoamdtir additional information. These changes haéhmmact on total revenues, total
operating expenses or net (loss) income for anipger
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(2) Goodwill

During the first quarter of 2013, we reorganized @perating segments to support our new operatimgtsire. As a result, we reassigned
goodwill to our segments using a relative fair eadlocation approach. In the table below we hawtassified $170 million from our data
hosting segment to our business segment compatbd smounts disclosed in our prior 2013 quarterbhorts. We determined that there was
an error in the calculation used to reallocate galbdelated to our January 3, 2013 segment redegdion and we have revised our goodwill
allocation relative to the fair values reflectivietioe segment changes at that date. This revisies dot change the total amount of goodwill
recorded on our consolidated balance sheet asygiréor period and would not have resulted in apamment in a prior period.

As of
January 3, 2013

(Dollars in millions)

Consumer $ 10,37¢
Business 6,41:
Wholesale 3,28:
Data hosting 1,657
Total goodwill $ 21,73:

For additional information on the reorganizatioroaf segments, see Note 8—Segment Information.

We test our goodwill and other indefiniiged intangible assets for impairment annually,worder certain circumstances, more freque
such as when events or circumstances indicate thayebe impairment. We are required to write dolaealue of goodwill only when our
testing determines the recorded amount of gooawidkeds the fair value. Our annual measuremenfatatesting goodwill impairment is
September 30, at which date we test our reportiiig,uvhich are our four operating segments (corsubrusiness, wholesale and data
hosting).

Our reporting units, which we refer to as our segtsieare not discrete legal entities with discfetancial statements. Our assets and
liabilities are employed in and relate to the ofierss of multiple reporting units. For each segmer compare its estimated fair value to the
carrying value of the assets that we attributdéosegment. If the estimated fair value of the sgns greater than the carrying value, we
conclude that no impairment exists. If the estidtar value of the segment is less than the cagryialue, a second calculation is required in
which the implied fair value of goodwill is compdrto the carrying value of goodwill that we attietio the segment. If the implied fair value
of goodwill is less than its carrying value, gooliiwiust be written down to its implied fair value.

At September 30, 2013, as a result of the Jar@t$ internal reorganization of our four segmentsdid not have a baseline valuation
upon which to perform a qualitative assessment.ithahlly, our stock price and total company forsteal cash flows declined since our
previous quantitative assessment. Therefore, wandhe process of completing our goodwill impaimh&esting by considering both a market
approach and a discounted cash flow method. Thikehapproach method includes the use of companrablgples of publicly traded
companies whose services are comparable to ouesdisbounted cash flow method is based on the mreatue of projected cash flows and a
terminal value, which represents the expected niirathcash flows of the segments beyond the castsfirom the discrete projection period.

We have not yet completed our impairment testingweler, based on our analysis performed thus fér iespect to these segments as
described above, we believe that the goodwill eeldab the wholesale, consumer and business segmastsot impaired as of September 30,
2013, but we believe that the goodwill for the datating segment was impaired as of September®@ 2The data hosting segment is
experiencing slower than previously projected rexeand margin growth and greater than anticipatetpetitive pressures. As a result, we
have estimated that the fair value of our dataihgstegment is less than its carrying value.

We have not finalized our impairment estimate Far tlata hosting segment due to the limited timesgddrom the testing date to the fili
date for this report, as well as the time requitedstimate the fair values of certain assets fdities for this segment. Although our analysis
is incomplete, we recorded our best estimate afregash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairmentrgesof $1.1 billion during the third
quarter of 2013 for goodwill attributed to our datasting segment. We expect to complete our impaitranalysis prior to reporting our
financial results for the fourth quarter of 2013l amill record an adjustment, which could be matet@our preliminary estimate at that time.

9
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As of September 30, 2013, we attributed our agdesg@odwill balance, after recording the above-dbed impairment to our data
hosting segment, to our four segments as follows:

As of
September 30, 2013

(Dollars in millions)

Consumer $ 10,37¢
Business 6,41:
Wholesale 3,28:
Data hosting’ 562
Total goodwiill $ 20,63"

@ Data hosting includes an adjustment to goodwilldioimmaterial acquisition in the second quarte2Qif3.

(3) Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

Long-term debt, including unamortized discounts pramiums, is as follows:

Interest Rates Maturities September 30, 2013  December 31, 2012
(Dollars in millions)
CenturyLink, Inc.
Senior notes 5.000% - 7.650% 2015 - 2042 7,07t 6,25(
Credit facility” 4.250% 2017 20C 82(
Term loan 2.430% 2019 407 424
Subsidiaries
Qwest
Senior notes 6.125% - 8.375% 2014 - 2053 9,19: 9,16¢
Embarq
Senior notes 7.082% - 7.995% 2016 - 2036 2,66¢ 2,66¢
First mortgage bonds 7.125% - 8.770% 2014 - 2025 262 322
Other 9.000% 2019 15C 20C
Capital lease and other obligations Various Various 653 734
Unamortized (discounts) premiums and other, net (26) 18
Total long-term debt 20,58: 20,60¢
Less current maturities (297 (1,20%)
$ 20,39: 19,40(

Long-term debt, excluding current maturities

@ The outstanding amount of our Credit Facility berirgs at September 30, 2013 was $200 million witlinderest rate of 4.250%These amounts change on a regular
New Issuance:

On May 23, 2013, Qwest Corporation ("QC") issuedSpmillion aggregate principal amount of 6.125% &¢otlue 2053, including $25
million principal amount that was sold pursuanatoover-allotment option granted to the underwsifer the offering, in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsetpenses, of approximately $752 milliofihe Notes are unsecured obligations and mi
redeemed, in whole or in part, on or after Jun2018 at a redemption price equal to 100% of thecpal amount redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date.

On March 21, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. issued $1lidmllaggregate principal amount of 5.625% Notes2i20 in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsexpenses, of approximately $988 milliohihe Notes are unsecured obligations and mi
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at &mgotion price equal to the greater of par or
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a "make-whole" rate specified in the Notes, plusaed and unpaid interest to the redemption dataddition, at any time on or prior to

April 1, 2016, we may redeem up to 35% of the ppatamount of the Notes at a redemption price egut05.625% of the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to themption date, with the net cash proceeds of ceegiity offerings. Under certain
circumstances, we will be required to make an dffeepurchase the Notes at a price of 101% of #ggiregate principal amount plus accrued
and unpaid interest to the repurchase date.

Repayment:

On August 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarg Corpamat'Embarg") paid at maturity the $50 million peipal amount of its 6.75%
Notes.

On July 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq paid aunitg the $59 million principal amount of its 6.8% Notes.

On June 17, 2013, QC paid at maturity the $75Ganilbrincipal amount of its floating rate Notes.

On April 1, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. paid at matyrihe $176 million principal amount of its 5.50% tds.
Covenants

As of September 30, 201 3ve believe we were in compliance with the prauisi and covenants contained in our Credit Fadility othe
debt agreements.

(4) Severance and Leased Real Estate

Periodically, we have reductions in our workforoel dave accrued liabilities for the related sevegatosts. These workforce reductions
resulted primarily from the progression or completof our integration plans, increased competitikessures and reduced workload demands
due to the loss of access lines.

We report severance liabilities within accrued exgas and other liabilities-salaries and benefisuinconsolidated balance sheets and
report severance expenses in cost of servicesraddqts and selling, general and administrativeeagps in our consolidated statements of
operations. We have not allocated any severancensgpto our consumer, business and wholesale segmen

We report the current portion of liabilities forateestate leases that we have ceased using ineglcexpenses and other liabilities and
report the noncurrent portion in other noncurrétiilities under deferred credits and other lidigis in our consolidated balance sheets. We
report the related expenses in selling, generabanainistrative expenses in our consolidated stam¢snof operations. At September 30, 2013
the current and noncurrent portions of our leasatlestate accrual were $18 million and $99 millioespectively. The remaining lease terms
range from 0.3 to 12.3 years, with a weighted ayerof 8.7 years.

Changes in our accrued liabilities for severanqeeages and leased real estate were as follows:

Severance Real Estate
(Dollars in millions)

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 17 131
Accrued to expense 17 —
Payments, net (23 (12
Reversals and adjustments — 2

Balance at September 30, 2013 $ 11 117

11
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(5) Employee Benefits

Net periodic pension benefit expense (income) ohetlithe following components:

Pension Plans

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Service cost $ 22 23 70 68
Interest cost 137 15€ 407 46€
Expected return on plan assets (229) (212) (672) (63€)
Recognition of prior service cost 1 1 4 3
Recognition of actuarial loss 20 7 61 22
Net periodic pension benefit expense (income) $ (44) (25) (130) (79)

Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense (inepmcluded the following components:

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Service cost $ 6 5 18 16
Interest cost 35 44 10% 131
Expected return on plan assets (20 (12) (30) (33
Recognition of actuarial loss 1 — 3 —
Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense (ingpm $ 32 38 96 114

We report net periodic benefit expense (incomeptorqualified pension, non-qualified pension andtgetirement benefit plans in cost
of services and products and selling, general dnuirastrative expenses on our consolidated statesvtdroperations.

12
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(6) (Loss) Earnings per Common Share

Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per common stoariie three and nine months ended Septemberd3@3 &nd 2012 were calculated as
follows:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts, shias in thousands)

(Loss) Income (Numerator):

Net (loss) income $ (1,04%) 27C (478 544
Earnings applicable to non-vested restricted stoc — — — (D)
Net (loss) income applicable to common stock for

computing basic (loss) earnings per common share (1,045 27C (47¢) 54z
Net (loss) income as adjusted for purposes of

computing diluted (loss) earnings per common s/$ (1,045 27C (479 545

Shares (Denominator):
Weighted average number of shares:

Outstanding during period 598,35( 622,76! 609,54. 621,37(
Non-vested restricted stock (3,767%) (2,547) (3,439 (2,582
Non-vested restricted stock units — 92C — 96(
Weighted average shares outstanding for compt
basic (loss) earnings per common share 594,58 621,14 606,10: 619,74¢
Incremental common shares attributable to dilutive
securities:
Shares issuable under convertible securities — 13 — 13
Shares issuable under incentive compensation plans — 2,13¢ — 2,067
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of
computing diluted (loss) earnings per common sl 594,58 623,291 606,10: 621,82¢
Basic (loss) earnings per common share $ (1.7¢€) 0.4 (0.79 0.8¢
Diluted (loss) earnings per common shiére $ (2.7¢) 0.4 (0.79 0.87

W For the three and nine months ended Septemben38,,2ve excluded from the calculation of dilutedd per share 1.16 million shares and 1.37 milluares, respectively,
potentially issuable under incentive compensatiangor convertible securities, as their effecinéduded, would have been anti-dilutive.

Our calculation of diluted (loss) earnings per camnshare excludes shares of common stock thassuable upon exercise of stock
options when the exercise price is greater thamtleeage market price of our common stock duriregpthriod. Such potentially issuable share:
totaled 2.7 million and 2.0 million for the threenths ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 , resplgctand 2.5 million and 2.2 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 .

(7) Fair Value Disclosure

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eaghvalents, accounts receivable, accounts payatnldong-term debt, excluding
capital lease obligations. Due to their shtertn nature, the carrying amounts of our cash asti equivalents, accounts receivable and acc
payable approximate their fair values.

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifglin an orderly transaction between
independent and knowledgeable parties who arengillind able to transact for an asset or liabilittha measurement date. We use valuation
techniques that maximize the use of observabletsngrd minimize the use of

13
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unobservable inputs when determining fair value theth we rank the estimated values based on tiabitd of the inputs used following the
fair value hierarchy set forth by the Financial Auonting Standards Board ("FASB").

We determined the fair values of our long-term detmiuding the current portion, based on quotedkeizprices where available or, if
not available, based on discounted future cashsflosing current market interest rates.

The three input levels in the hierarchy of fairummeasurements are defined by the FASB geneaflyllaws:

Input Level Description of Input
Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted market pricestiveamarkets.
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices in active markweds are either directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which little or no marketadexists.

The following table presents the carrying amount @stimated fair values of our long-term debtjeding capital lease obligations, as
well as the input level used to determine thevalues:

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
Input Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Level Amount Value Amount Value

(Dollars in millions)

Liabilities—Long-term debt, excluding capital leas
obligations 2 $ 19,92¢ 20,12 19,87: 21,457

(8) Segment Information

During the first quarter of 2013, we announcedaxganization of our operating segments. Consequesitice the first quarter of 2013,
we have reported the following four segments inaamrsolidated financial statements: consumer, lessinwholesale and data hosting. The
primary purpose of the reorganization was to stifey our focus on the business market while coimgaur commitment to our wholesale,
hosting and consumer customers. The reorganizatiotbined business sales and operations functi@$dimerly resided in the enterprise
markets—network segment and the regional markeimeet into the new unified business segment. Timaireng customers formerly
serviced by the regional markets segment becameetiveconsumer segment. Each of the current segraentiescribed further below:

» Consumer. Consists generally of providing strategic and ¢éggaroducts and services to residential consun@usstrategic products
and services offered to these customers includémadband, wireless and video services, includimgPrism TV services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indluchd and long-distance service.

e Business. Consists generally of providing strategic and tggaroducts and services to commercial, enterpgiedal and
governmental customers. Our strategic productsandces offered to these customers include ouatiline, broadband, Ethernet,
Multiprotocol Label Switching ("MPLS"), Voice ovénternet Protocol ("VolP"), and network managenmsmwices. Our legacy
services offered to these customers include law@dll@ng-distance service.

* Wholesale. Consists generally of providing strategic and tggaroducts and services to other communicatioosigers. Our strateg
products and services offered to these customemnainly private line (including special accesgylidated internet access, digital
subscriber line ("DSL") and MPLS. Our legacy seegioffered to these customers include resale ofewices, unbundled network
elements ("UNEs") which allow our wholesale custertbe use of our network or a combination of cetwork and their own
networks to provide voice and data services ta thestomers, long-distance and switched acces&ssrand other services, including
billing and collection, pole rental, floor spacedatatabase services.

» Datahosting. Consists primarily of providing colocation, mandd®sting and cloud hosting services to commereigkrprise, glob
and governmental customers.
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We have restated previously reported segment sefulthe three and nine months ended Septemb&03@, due to the abowdescribec
restructuring of our business. Segment resultsamemarized below:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Total segment revenues $ 4,26 4,31« 12,79¢ 13,00:
Total segment expenses 2,10¢ 2,071 6,11z 6,154
Total segment income $ 2,16 2,24: 6,687 6,85(
Total margin percentage 50.7% 52.(% 52.2% 52.1%
Consumer:

Revenues $ 1,50: 1,53¢ 4,50¢ 4,64(

Expenses 58C 58& 1,657 1,72(

Income $ 928 951 2,857 2,92(

Margin percentage 61.4% 61.9% 63.2% 62.%
Business:

Revenues $ 1,54+ 1,541 4,57: 4,58¢

Expenses 95¢€ 93¢ 2,77¢ 2,78¢

Income $ 58€ 60¢ 1,797 1,797

Margin percentage 38.(% 39.% 39.2% 39.2%
Wholesale:

Revenues $ 87¢ 91C 2,69¢ 2,81¢

Expenses 292 304 86¢ 92¢

Income $ 58E 60€ 1,827 1,88¢

Margin percentage 66.6% 66.6% 67.8% 67.(%
Data hosting:

Revenues $ 342 327 1,02: 96C

Expenses 274 24¢€ 811 71€

Income $ 68 81 21z 244

Margin percentage 19.9% 24.&% 20.7% 25.4%

We categorize our products and services into thewong four categories:

»  Srategic services, which include primarily broadband, private linec{uding special access which we market to whddeaad
business customers), MPLS (which is a data netwgrtéchnology that can deliver the quality of seeviequired to support real-time
voice and video), hosting (including cloud hostargl managed hosting), colocation, Ethernet, videduding resold satellite and our
facilities-based video services), VolP and Veri¥dimeless services;

e Legacy services, which include primarily local, long-distance, $stied access, Integrated Services Digital Netwd&ON") (which
uses regular telephone lines to support voice ovadal data applications), and traditional wide awetavork ("WAN") services (which
allows a local communications network to link tdwerks in remote locations);

» Dataintegration, which includes the sale of telecommunications@gent located on customers' premises and relatfdgsional
services, such as network management, installatidrmaintenance of data equipment and buildingagnietary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our government and busicest®omers; and

»  Other revenues, which consist primarily of Universal Service Furid§F") revenue and surcharges. Unlike the first¢tmrevenue
categories, other revenues are not included irsegment revenues.
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Our operating revenues for our products and ses\ioasisted of the following categories:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic services $ 2,18¢ 2,101 6,49t 6,237
Legacy services 1,91¢ 2,04¢ 5,83¢ 6,28¢
Data integration 162 16€ 47C 48:
Other 24¢ 257 754 78¢
Total operating revenues $ 4,51% 4,571 13,55: 13,79:

Other operating revenues include revenues fromeusal service funds which allow us to recover diporof our costs under federal and
state cost recovery mechanisms and certain surehi@ogur customers, including billings for ouruigd contributions to several USF
programs. These surcharge billings to our customerseflected on a gross basis in our statemémigerations (included in equal amounts in
both operating revenues and expenses) and aggiesygieoximately $368 million and $398 million févet nine months ended September 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively. We also generate offerating revenues from leasing and subleasirsgade in our office buildings,
warehouses and other properties. We centrally neatiegactivities that generate these other opgradivenues and consequently these
revenues are not included in any of our four sedmpresented in the segment results table above.

Our segment revenues include all revenues fronstategic, legacy and data integration operatiermescribed in more detail above.
Segment revenues are based upon each customssiicidion to an individual segment. We report segment revenues based upon all
services provided to that segment's customers,thitlexception of data hosting revenue generated fusiness and wholesale customers,
which is reported as data hosting segment reveideseport our segment expenses for our four setmaenfollows:

» Direct expenses, which primarily are specific expenses incurrecalrect result of providing services and prodactsegment
customers, along with selling, general and adnratis®e expenses that are directly associated ypigltciic segment customers or
activities; and

» Allocated expenses, which include network expenses, facilities exgsnand other expenses such as fleet and real espnse

We do not assign depreciation and amortization es@er impairments to our segments, as the redssets and capital expenditures are
centrally managed. Similarly, severance expenssg,ucturing expenses and, subject to an excefatiavur data hosting segment, certain
centrally managed administrative functions (sucfir@nce, information technology, legal and humesources) are not assigned to our
segments. Interest expense is also excluded frgmesat results because we manage our financingiatalacompany basis and have not
allocated assets or debt to specific segmentsr@ibeme (expense) does not relate to our segnpEratons and is therefore excluded from
our segment results. In addition, our assets apitat@xpenditures are not monitored by or repottethe chief operating decision maker
("CODM") by segment.

The following table reconciles segment income to(loss) income:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Total segment income $ 2,16: 2,24: 6,681 6,85(
Other operating revenues 24¢ 257 754 78¢
Depreciation and amortization (1,139 (1,149 (3,379 (3,560
Impairment of goodwill (Note 2) (1,100 — (1,200 —
Other unassigned operating expenses (860) (620 (2,159 (2,039
Other income (expense), net (320 (319 (918 (1,179
Income tax expense (40) (152) (372) (332
Net (loss) income $ (1,049 27C (47¢) 544
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(9) Commitments and Contingencies

In this Note, when we refer to a class action agdfive" it is because a class has been allegeddicertified in that matter. Until and
unless a class has been certified by the courasinot been established that the named plairgifisesent the class of plaintiffs they purport to
represent.

We have established accrued liabilities only far tatters described below where losses are deerokdhpe and reasonably estimable.

We are vigorously defending against all of the erattlescribed below. As a matter of course, weemeared both to litigate the matters
to judgment, as well as to evaluate and considese#lement opportunities.

Litigation Matters Relating to CenturyLink and Embg

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyLink fited lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Netgelecover terminating access
charges for VolP traffic owed under various intentection agreements and tariffs which presently@pmate $34 million in the aggregate.
The lawsuits allege that Sprint Nextel has breaduedracts, violated tariffs, and violated the Fal€ommunications Act by failing to pay
these charges. One lawsuit, filed on behalf ofegihicy Embarq operating entities, was tried in febeourt in Virginia in August 2010 and, in
March 2011, a ruling was issued in our favor anairegs Sprint Nextel. That ruling was affirmed ompaagl, and Sprint's petition for further
review by the U.S. Supreme Court has been denisa@ result, this lawsuit is concluded and, as pt&aber 30, 2013, Sprint has paid us
approximately $24 million in connection with thasaisuit. The other lawsuit, filed on behalf of alldacy CenturyLink operating entities, is
pending in federal court in Louisiana. In that casesarly 2011 the Court dismissed certain of Qeyitink's claims, referred other claims to
FCC, and stayed the litigation. In April 2012, $piNextel filed a petition with the FCC, seekindexlaratory ruling that CenturyLink's access
charges do not apply to VolP originated calls. Vileehnot deferred revenue related to these matteaulse we do not believe an adverse
outcome is probable based upon current circumssance

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarq Corporation, et al. , filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statisriat Court for the
District of Kansas, a group of retirees filed agtivie class action lawsuit challenging the decis@®make certain modifications in retiree
benefits programs relating to life insurance, madicsurance and prescription drug benefits, gdiyezéective January 1, 2006 and January 1
2008 (which, at the time of the modifications, veapected to reduce estimated future expensesdamubject benefits by more than $300
million ). Defendants include Embarq, certain sfbenefit plans, its Employee Benefits Committeé the individual plan administrator of
certain of its benefits plans. Additional defendaintlude Sprint Nextel and certain of its benglfins. The Court certified a class on certain of
plaintiffs’ claims, but rejected class certificatias to other claims. Embarg and other defendamtsnuie to vigorously contest these claims an
charges. On October 14, 2011, théghum lawyers filed a new, related lawsulthbott et al. v. Sorint Nextel et al. CenturyLink/Embarq is not
named a defendant in the lawsuit Alobott, approximately 1,500 plaintiffs allege breach oifithry duty in connection with the changes in
retiree benefits that also are at issue inRilghum case. Thé\bbott plaintiffs are all members of the class that watifeed in Fulghum on
claims for allegedly vested benefits (Counts | Hjdand theAbbott claims are similar to thEulghum breach of fiduciary duty claim (Count
1), on which theFulghum court denied class certification. The Court hagexigproceedings iAbbott indefinitely. On February 14, 2013, the
Fulghum court dismissed the majority of the plaintiffs'iota in that case. On July 16, 2013, Eheéghum court granted plaintiffs' request to
seek interlocutory review by the United States €otiAppeals for the Tenth Circuit. Embarqg and dtieer defendants will defend the appeal,
continue to vigorously contest any remaining claimSulghum and seek to have the claims in tdgbott case dismissed on similar grounds.
We have not accrued a liability for these mattersalnse we believe it is premature (i) to determihether an accrual is warranted and, (i) if
S0, to determine a reasonable estimate of proliiabiéty.

Litigation Matters Relating to Qwes

On July 16, 2013, Comcast MO Group, Inc. ("Comq@ddtd a lawsuit in Colorado state court againgtgdt Communications
International, Inc. ("Qwest"). Comcast alleges Quirsached the parties' 1998 tax sharing agreeftiEBA") when it refused to partially
indemnify Comcast for a tax liability settlementr@cast reached with the Commonwealth of Massaclsusedt dispute to which we were not a
party. Comcast seeks approximately $80 millionameges, excluding interest. Qwest and Comcastaatiepto the TSA in their capacities as
successors to the TSA's original parties, U S WHRT., a telecommunications company, and MediaOreifg Inc., a cable television
company, respectively. We have not accrued a tiglidr this matter because we do not believe liadiflity is probable.

On September 29, 2010, the trustees in the Dutckrbptcy proceeding for KPNQwest, N.V. (of which €stwas a major shareholder)
filed a lawsuit in the District Court of Haarlenhgt Netherlands, alleging tort and mismanagemeinslander Dutch law. Qwest and
Koninklijke KPN N.V. ("KPN") are defendants in thimwsuit along with a number of former KPNQwestewisory board members and a
former officer of KPNQwest, some of whom were foripeaffiliated with
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Qwest. Plaintiffs allege, among other things, ttefendants' actions were a cause of the bankraghticPNQwest, and they seek damages for
the bankruptcy deficit of KPNQwest, which is clauin®e be approximately €4.2 billion (or approximst&b.7 billion based on the exchange
rate on September 30, 2013 ), plus statutory isteflevo lawsuits asserting similar claims were pasly filed against Qwest and others in
federal courts in New Jersey in 2004 and Colorad20i09; those courts dismissed the lawsuits witpogjudice on the grounds that the claims
should not be litigated in the United States.

In October 2013 following a confidential mediati@west, KPN, and the trustees reached a tentataleagreement on the principal
financial terms of a potential settlement. The pb& settlement terms include Qwest's paymentl@@émillion (or approximately $233 millic
based on the exchange rate on September 30, 2088 KPNQwest bankruptcy estate pursuant to @srmification obligations, discussed
below. The tentative settlement is subject to sEvanditions, including the negotiation and exapubf a definitive settlement agreement
acceptable to the plaintiffs and various other deéamts and the approval of the Dutch bankruptcytcou

On September 13, 2006, Cargill Financial Markels and Citibank, N.A. filed a lawsuit in the DigttiCourt of Amsterdam, the
Netherlands, against Qwest, KPN, KPN Telecom Baxid other former officers, employees or supervigmgrd members of KPNQwest, sc
of whom were formerly affiliated with Qwest. TheMsuit alleges that defendants misrepresented KPNQwimancial and business condition
in connection with the origination of a credit figiand wrongfully allowed KPNQwest to borrow fusidnder that facility. Plaintiffs allege
damages of approximately €219 million (or approxieha$296 million based on the exchange rate orie®eiper 30, 2013 ). The value of this
claim will be reduced to the degree plaintiffs igeerecovery from the tentative trustee settlenusicribed above. While we expect the
plaintiffs would receive proceeds from any suclstiee settlement, the amounts of such expectedegcave not yet known. On April 25, 20
the court issued its judgment denying the clainserdsd by Cargill and Citibank in their lawsuit.r@id and Citibank are appealing that
decision.

Regarding the 2010 proceeding filed by the trusteeshave accrued a liability in the third quad&013 in the pre-tax amount of €172
million (or approximately $233 million reflected our accompanying consolidated financial statemieased on the exchange rate on
September 30, 2013) which equals Qwest's propasaiiloution under the terms of the tentative satdat. In the event that a settlement is no
finalized, we will continue to defend against thattar vigorously. Regarding the 2006 suit brough€argill Financial Markets, Plc and
Citibank. N.A., we do not believe that liability jgobable and will continue to defend against tfadten vigorously.

The terms and conditions of applicable bylaws,ifteates or articles of incorporation, agreementagplicable law may obligate Qwest
to indemnify its former directors, officers or erapées with respect to certain of the matters diesdrabove, and Qwest has been advancing
legal fees and costs to certain former directdfigars or employees in connection with certain texat described above.

Several putative class actions relating to theaitaton of fiber optic cable in certain rights-afiy were filed against Qwest on behalf of
landowners on various dates and in courts locat&d istates in which Qwest has such cable (Alabamizgna, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, lgW&nsas, Kentucky, Maryland, Massachusetts, Majd/innesota, Mississippi, Missouri,
Nebraska, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New YNdtth Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, PennsyibyaBouth Carolina, Tenness
Texas, Utah, Virginia, and Wisconsin.) For the npest, the complaints challenge our right to irsial fiber optic cable in railroad rights-of-
way. The complaints allege that the railroads dwenrtght-of-way as an easement that did not incthdeight to permit us to install our cable
in the right-of-way without the plaintiffs' conseMost of the currently pending actions purporb&brought on behalf of state-wide classes in
the named plaintiffs' respective states, althoughaction pending before the lllinois Court of Apfsepurports to be brought on behalf of
landowners in lllinois, lowa, Kentucky, Michigan,iivhesota, Nebraska, Ohio and Wisconsin. In gengralcomplaints seek damages on
theories of trespass and unjust enrichment, asaselunitive damages. After previous attempts terénto a single nationwide settlement in a
single court proved unsuccessful, the parties maee to seek court approval of settlements onte-bBtastate basis. To date, the parties have
received final approval of such settlements int2%es (Alabama, California, Colorado, Delawarefifil Georgia, lllinois, Indiana, lowa,
Kansas, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippissouri, Nebraska, Nevada, New Jersey, New YNdith Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma,
Oregon, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessed, Virginia and Wisconsin), have received onlyliprmary approval of the settlement in
one state (Kentucky), and have not yet receivdteejpreliminary or final approval in one state whan action is pending (Texas) and three
states where actions were at one time, but areurogntly, pending (Arizona, Massachusetts, and Nixico). We have accrued an amount
that we believe is probable for these matters; lvewehe amount is not material to our consolidditeaincial statements.

Securities Actions

CenturyLink and certain of its affiliates are defants in two securities and four shareholder dévieactions. The securities actions are
pending in federal court in the Southern DistricNew York and the derivative actions are pendimg i
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federal court in the Eastern and Western Disto€tisouisiana, and Louisiana state court. Plainiiffshese actions have variously alleged,
among other things, that CenturyLink and certaiitoo€urrent and former officers and directors &ietl federal securities laws and/or breache
fiduciary duties owed to the Company and its shaldsrs. Plaintiffs' complaints focus on alleged enial misstatements or omissions
concerning CenturyLink's financial condition andinges in CenturyLink's capital allocation strateggarly 2013.

The matters are in preliminary phases and the Coynjpdiends to defend against the filed actions nogely. We have not accrued a
liability for these matters as it is prematuret¢idetermine whether an accrual is warranted anid §o, to determine a reasonable estimate of
probable liability.

Other Matters

From time to time, we are involved in other prodagd incidental to our business, including patefrimrgement allegations,
administrative hearings of state public utility aoissions relating primarily to rate making, actioakting to employee claims, various tax
issues, environmental law issues, grievance hesabirfpre labor regulatory agencies, and miscellaséard party tort actions. The outcome
these other proceedings is not predictable. Howdased on current circumstances we do not belfeatghe ultimate resolution of these other
proceedings, after considering available defensdsresurance coverage, will have a material adveiffeet on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

(10) Other Financial Information
Other Current Assets

Other current assets reflected on our consolidaédahce sheets consisted of the following:

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Prepaid expenses $ 271 257
Materials, supplies and inventory 172 12t
Assets held for sale — 96
Deferred activation and installation charges 69 53
Other 45 21
Total other current assets $ 56t 552

In January 2013, we sold $43 million of our wiralepectrum assets held for sale. The sale rednolgedain of $32 million , which is
recorded as other income on our consolidated statenof operations. During the quarter ended JOn2@L3, we reclassified our remaining
$53 million of wireless spectrum assets from heldsale to other intangible assets on our congelitihalance sheet. Although we continue to
pursue selling our remaining spectrum assets, werger expect to reach agreements with purchagé the coming twelve months.

Selected Current Liabilitie:

Current liabilities reflected in our consolidategldnce sheets include accounts payable and othentliabilities as follows:

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Accounts payable $ 1,15¢ 1,207
Other current liabilities:
Accrued rent $ 46 48
Legal reserves 26¢€ 39
Unsettled repurchased common shares 18 —
Other 16¢ 147
Total other current liabilities $ 49¢ 234

19




Table of Contents

We had approximately $132 million and $132 milliarbook overdrafts included in accounts payabl8egtember 30, 2013 and
December 31, 2012 , respectively.

(11) Labor Union Contracts

Approximately 37% of our employees are membersaoious bargaining units represented by the Comnatinits Workers of America
("CWA") or the International Brotherhood of Elecai Workers ("IBEW"). Approximately 12,000 , or 26%f our employees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements that expired Gat@) 2012, and an additional 1,600 or 4% of oupleyees are subject to additional
collective bargaining agreement that have expimacesthen. Since the expirations, we have beentraing the terms of new agreements.
Recently, we reached conditional agreements withAdWstrict 7 and IBEW Local 206 for a four -yearllective bargaining agreement
covering approximately 12,000 of our employeeseAfejecting the initial agreements, the CWA anB\B members approved the second
agreements, and they became effective on Octoh@023. The new agreements will expire on Octoh@017.

(12) Repurchase of CenturyLink Common Stock

In February 2013, the board of directors authorizedtb repurchase up to $2 billion of our outstagdiommon stock. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2013, we repurchas2anibon shares of our outstanding common stock in the oparket. These shares wi
repurchased for an aggregate market price of $ildn , or an average purchase price of $35.0%pare. The repurchased common stock
has been retired. As of September 30, 2013 , wapptbximately $764 million in stock remaining dahle for repurchase under the Stock
Repurchase Program. The figures set forth abovieidxshares that, as of September 30, 2013 , wadraed to purchase under the program
for $18 million , or an average purchase price3%.$6 per share, in transactions that settled @atlye fourth quarter of 2013.

(13) Other Comprehensive Earnings

The tables below summarize changes in our accuatutsther comprehensive income (loss) recorded ooansolidated balance sheet
by component for the three and nine months endpteB8edber 30, 2013 , respectively:

Foreign Currency

Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plans Benefit Plans and Other Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at June 30, 2013 $ (1,372) (28¢) (27) (1,689
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifins — — 13 13
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmsive
income 13 1 — 14
Net current-period other comprehensive income Jloss 13 1 13 27
Balance at September 30, 2013 $ (1,359 (287) (14 (1,660
Foreign Currency
Translation
Post-Retirement Adjustment
Pension Plans Benefit Plans and Other Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ (1,399 (289 (13 (1,709
Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassifins — — (2) (2)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmnsive
income 40 2 — 42
Net current-period other comprehensive income Jloss 40 2 (D] 41
Balance at September 30, 2013 $ (1,359 (287) (19 (1,660
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The tables below present information about ourassifications out of accumulated other comprehensivome (loss) by component for
the three and nine months ended September 30,,2@%Bectively:

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
Decrease (Increase) Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 in Net Loss Recognized in Net Income in Total

(Dollars in millions)
Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans

Net actuarial loss $ (21) See Note 5-Employee Benefits
Prior service cost (1) See Note 5-Employee Benefits
Total before tax (22
Income tax expense (benefit) 8 Income tax expense

Net of tax $ (14)

Affected Line Item in Consolidated Statement of
Operations or Footnote Where Additional
Decrease (Increase) Information is Presented If The Amount is not
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 in Net Loss Recognized in Net Income in Total

(Dollars in millions)
Amortization of pension & post-retirement plans

Net actuarial loss $ (64) See Note 5-Employee Benefits
Prior service cost (4) See Note 5-Employee Benefits
Total before tax (68)
Income tax expense (benefit) 26 Income tax expense

Net of tax $ (42)
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Unless the context requires otherwise, references in this report to " CenturyLink," "we,
consolidated subsidiaries.

us' and "our" refer to CenturyLink, Inc. and its

All references to "Notes" in this Item 2 refer leetNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements dieelin Item 1 of this report.

Certain statements in this report constitute fodalaoking statements. See the last paragraph siténin 2 and "Risk Factors" in Item 1A
of Part Il of this report for a discussion of cértéactors that could cause our actual resultsfferdrom our anticipated results or otherwise
impact our business, financial condition, resuftserations, liquidity or prospects.

Overview

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanamaddlion and Results of Operations ("MD&A") inclutlberein should be read in
conjunction with MD&A and the other information ionded in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for theiyeaded December 31, 2012 , and
with the consolidated financial statements andedlaotes in Item 1 of Part | of this report. Theults of operations for the first ninenths o
the year are not necessarily indicative of theltesid operations that might be expected for thireyear.

We are an integrated communications company engagaarily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our residential,
business, governmental and wholesale customersc@dumunications services include local and longatlise, network access, private line
(including special access), public access, broadibdata, managed hosting (including cloud hostioglpcation, wireless, and video services.
In certain local and regional markets, we also pl®Vocal access and fiber transport services nopatitive local exchange carriers and sec
monitoring. We strive to maintain our customer tielaships by, among other things, bundling our serefferings to provide our customers
with a complete offering of integrated communicasicervices.

At September 30, 2013 , we operated 13.2 milli@oeas lines in 37 states, served approximatelynili@n broadband subscribers, and
operated 55 data centers throughout North AmeEaegpe and Asia. Our methodology for counting asdegs may not be comparable to
those of other companies.

During the first quarter of 2013 , we announceda@ganization of our operating segments. Conselyyeve now report the following
four segments in our consolidated financial statgme

« Consumer. Consists generally of providing strategic and lggamducts and services to residential consumeus s@ategic products
and services offered to these customers includdmadband, wireless and video services, includingPrism TV services. Our
legacy services offered to these customers indlhuchd and long-distance service;

e Business. Consists generally of providing strategic and lggamducts and services to commercial, enterpgkdal and government
customers. Our strategic products and servicesanff® these customers include our private lineatfbband, Ethernet, Multiprotocol
Label Switching ("MPLS"), Voice over Internet Protd ("VolP"), and network management services. l@gacy services offered to
these customers include local and long-distancgcser

» Wholesale. Consists generally of providing strategic and lggamducts and services to other communicationsigeos. Our strategic
products and services offered to these customemnaimly private line (including special accesgylidated internet access, digital
subscriber line ("DSL") and MPLS. Our legacy seegioffered to these customers include resale ofewices, unbundled network
elements ("UNEs") which allow our wholesale custesrtbe use of our network or a combination of cetwwork and their own
networks to provide voice and data services ta thestomers, long-distance and switched acces&ssrand other services, including
billing and collection, pole rental, floor spacelatatabase services; and

» Data hosting. Consists primarily of providing colocation, manadmxsting and cloud hosting services to commereiatierprise, global
and governmental customers.

Our segment information does not include capitpleexiitures, total assets, or certain revenues gpehses that we manage on a
centralized basis and are only reviewed by ourfaperating decision maker ("CODM") on a consol@gthbasis. Our segment results are not
necessarily indicative of the results of operatithreg our segments would have achieved had theratgzbas stand-alone entities during the
periods presented. For additional information almautsegments, see Note 8—
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Segment Information to our consolidated financiatesments in Item 1 of Part | of this report an@$Blts of Operations—Segment Results"
below.

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the results of camsolidated operations for the three and nine nwatided September 30, 2013 and
2012 :

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions except per share amounts)
Operating revenues $ 4,51¢ 4,571 13,55 13,79
Operating expenses 5,20( 3,83¢ 12,74: 11,74¢
Operating (loss) income (68E) 73€ 812 2,047
Other income (expense) (320 (319 (918 (1,179
Income tax expense 40 152 372 332
Net (loss) income $ (1,04%) 27C (47¢) 544
Basic (loss) earnings per common share $ (1.76) 0.4z (0.79) 0.8¢
Diluted (loss) earnings per common share $ (1.7€) 0.4: (0.79 0.87

The following table summarizes certain of our seddmperational metrics:

As of September 30, Increase /
2013 2012% (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands)
Broadband subscribet's 5,94: 5,81( 132 2.2%
Access line$ 13,15( 13,95( (800) (5.7%
Employees 46.7 46.5 0.2 0.4%

®The prior year numbers have been adjusted to irdluel operational metrics of our wholly owned sdiasy, EI Paso County Telephone Company, whichtesh previously
excluded. The increase (in thousands) related eaddyand subscribers and Access lines attributalii¢ Paso County Telephone Company's inclusiopjsaximately 3 and
4 | respectively.

During the last several years, we have experiereezhue declines (excluding the impact of acquisg) primarily due to declines in
access lines, intrastate access rates and minfutisg.oTo mitigate these declines, we remain fodwseefforts to, among other things:

» promote longerm relationships with our customers through bimgdbf integrated service

« provide new services, such as video, cloud hgsthanaged hosting, colocation and other additiesaices that may become
available in the future due to, among other thimgls;ances in technology or improvements in ouastfucture;

» provide our broadband and premium services to laghigercentage of our custom
e pursue acquisitions of additional assets if avédlah attractive price
» increase usage of our networks;

* market our products and services to new custo
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Operating Revenues

We currently categorize our products, servicesramdnues among the following four categories:

e Strategic services, which include primarily broadband, private linec{uding special access, which we market to whadéeand
business customers), MPLS (which is a data netwgrtéchnology that can deliver the quality of seeviequired to support real-time
voice and video), hosting (including cloud hostargl managed hosting), colocation, Ethernet, videmuding our facilities-based
video services, which we now offer in twelve masketnd our resold satellite), VolP and Verizon \I¢ige services;

* Legacy services, which include primarily local, long-distance, sohied access, Integrated Services Digital Netwd&ON") (which
uses regular telephone lines to support voice ovadel data applications), and traditional wide awetavork ("WAN") services (which
allows a local communications network to link tdwerks in remote locations);

« Dataintegration, which includes the sale of telecommunicationgfgent located on customers' premises and relatddgsional
services, such as network management, installatidnmaintenance of data equipment and buildingagnetary fiber-optic
broadband networks for our government and busicestemers; and

»  Other revenues, which consists primarily of USF revenue and surgbar Unlike the first three revenue categoriemothvenues are
not included in our segment revenues.

The following tables summarize our operating rewsnunder our current revenue categorization:

Three Months Ended September 30,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic services $ 2,18¢ 2,101 88 4%
Legacy services 1,91t 2,04t (130 (6)%
Data integration 163 16€ 5) (3)%
Other 24¢ 257 (9) (4)%
Total operating revenues $ 4,51t 4,571 (56) ()%
Nine Months Ended September 30, Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Strategic services $ 6,49¢ 6,231 25¢ 4%
Legacy services 5,83¢ 6,28¢ (450 (7%
Data integration 47C 48: (13 (3)%
Other 754 78¢ (39 (4)%
Total operating revenues $ 13,55¢ 13,79 (240 (2%

Operating revenues decreased $56 million and $24i@m or 1% and 2% , during the three and ninenths ended September 30, 2013
as compared to the three and nine months endedrBleet 30, 2012 . This decrease was primarily atiitle to declines in legacy services
revenues, which reflected the continuing loss okas lines, loss of access associated with intsurietitution and wireless substitution in our
markets. We believe the decline in the number oéss lines was primarily due to the displacemeiraafitional wireline telephone services
other competitive products and services. We estirtiatt our access lines loss will be between 5.@&866al% in 2013. Our legacy services
revenues were also negatively impacted in 2013héycontinued migration of customers to bundledisersfferings at lower effective rates.
The decreases in our legacy services revenuespaetially offset by higher revenues from strateggevices revenues. Growth in our
broadband, Ethernet, MPLS, facilities-based vide®d @location customers accounted for a majoritthefgrowth in strategic services
revenues.

Further analysis of our operating revenues by segmerovided below in "Segment Results."



24




Table of Contents

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses increased $1,365 milliarB6é6 , for the three months ended September 3B 36 compared to September 30,
2012 and operating expenses increased $995 milbo8% , for the nine months ended September @03 2s compared to September 30,
2012.

The following tables summarize our operating expens

Three Months Ended September 30,
Increase /

2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptexi and

amortization) $ 1,91¢ 1,94: (25) (1)%
Selling, general and administrative 1,045 74¢ 29¢ 40%
Depreciation and amortization 1,13¢ 1,14¢ 9 ()%
Impairment of goodwiill 1,10( — 1,10( — %
Total operating expenses $ 5,20( 3,83¢ 1,365 36 %

Nine Months Ended September 30,
Increase /

2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptixi and

amortization) $ 5,587 5,73: (145) 3)%
Selling, general and administrative 2,67¢ 2,45¢ 22t 9%
Depreciation and amortization 3,37¢ 3,56( (18%) (5)%
Impairment of goodwiill 1,10( — 1,10( — %
Total operating expenses $ 12,74 11,74¢ 99t 8%

Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiei and amortization) decreased slightly forttiree months ended September 30,
2013 as compared to the three months ended Sept@®k2012 primarily due to a decrease in realtestad power, maintenance costs and
employee benefits costs. These decreases werallyaoffset by increases in facility cost, netwakpense and professional fees. Cost of
services and products (exclusive of depreciatiahanortization) decreased for the nine months esggdember 30, 2013 as compared to the
nine months ended September 30, 2012 primarilytaldecreases in salaries and wages costs assogithetie reduction in headcount,
reduction in severance costs related to our resequisitions, and decreases in employee benefits,qorofessional fees, data integration cost:
and access expenses. The decreases were parffiisdiyliy increases in facility cost, network expeasd real estate and power cost. We e
our salaries, wages and employee benefits experi@screase during the remainder of 2013 as we hdditional personnel in connection
with our growth initiatives.

Selling, general and administrative expenses isefor the three months ended September 30, Z20¢8napared to the three months
ended September 30, 2012 primarily due to a chafr§@33 million in connection with a tentative $attent in a litigation matter. The increase
was also attributable to increases in salariesraages cost, facilities cost, external commissioth marketing and advertising costs, which v
partially offset by a decrease in professional f&dling, general and administrative expensesasgd for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 as compared to the nine montlexieSeptember 30, 2012 primarily due to the $2®mcharge for the above-
referenced tentative litigation settlement. Thaéase was also attributable to increases in priofesisfees and marketing and advertising ct
which were offset by a reduction in salaries andegacosts associated with the reduction in headcoun

Depreciation expense decreased for the three aedhmonths ended September 30, 2013 as compariee tioree and nine months ended
September 30, 203&imarily due to depreciation rate changes of @etelecommunications equipment. The rate changas the result of o
aged investment in plant becoming fully depreciatetketired at a faster rate than the acquisitiomesv plant. Amortization expense decreasec
for the three and nine months ended September03@ &s compared to the three and nine months édelg@mber 30, 2012 partially due to
the use of accelerated amortization for a
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portion of the customer relationship assets. Intang amortization of capitalized software was @vdue to our software investments
becoming fully amortized faster than new softwaes\acquired.

Goodwill Impairment

During the first quarter of 2013, we reorganized @perating segments to support our new operatmgtsire. Goodwill is reassigned to
the segments using a relative fair value allocagipproach. We utilize the earnings before intetagtand depreciation as our allocation
methodology as it represents a reasonable proxihéofair value of the operations being reorganifext additional information on the first
quarter 2013 reorganization of our segments, sée 8teSegment Information to the consolidated finandiaiesnents in Iltem 1 of Part | of t
report.

As of September, 30, 2013, we test our reportiritsuwhich are our four operating segments (consumesiness, wholesale and data
hosting) for goodwill impairment and as of the dat¢his report, we have not yet completed our impant testing. However, based on our
analysis performed thus far with respect to thegenents as described above, we believe that thdwglbeelated to the wholesale, consumer
and business segments was not impaired as of Seete&0, 2013, but we believe that the goodwilltfar data hosting segment was impaired
as of September 30, 2013 . The data hosting segmerperiencing slower than previously projectdenue and margin growth and greater
than anticipated competitive pressures. As a reselthave estimated that the fair value of our tiatsting segment is less than its carrying
value.

We have not finalized our impairment estimate far tlata hosting segment due to the limited timesgdrom the testing date to the fili
date for this report, as well as the time requicedstimate the fair values of certain assets @fidlities for this segment. Although our analysis
is incomplete, we recorded our best estimate afregash, non-tax-deductible goodwill impairmentrgesof $1.1 billion during the third
quarter of 2013 for goodwill attributable to outallosting segment. We expect to complete our imm@ait analysis prior to reporting our
financial results for the fourth quarter of 2013l amill record an adjustment, which could be matet@our preliminary estimate at that time.
See Note 2—Goodwill to the consolidated financiatements in Item 1 of part | of this report.

We may be required to assess our goodwill for impant before our next required testing date of &aper 30, 2014 under certain
circumstances, including any failure of our futoperating results to meet forecasted expectatipasysignificant increases in our weighted
average cost of capital. In addition, we cannotii@sthat adverse conditions will not trigger futgeodwill impairment testing or an
impairment charge. A number of factors, many ofalshive have no ability to control, could affect dimancial condition, operating results and
business prospects and could cause our actuatgésuliffer from the estimates and assumptionemployed in our goodwill impairment
testing. These factors include, but are not limited(i) further weakening in the overall econorfii);a significant decline in our stock price &
resulting market capitalization; (iii) changes lie tdiscount rate we use in our testing; (iv) susfteefforts by our competitors to gain market
share in our markets; (v) adverse changes as b ofsagulatory or legislative actions; (vi) a sificant adverse change in legal factors or ir
overall business climate; and (vii) recognitioraajoodwill impairment loss in the financial staterseof a subsidiary that is a component of
our segments. For additional information, see "Riaktors" in Iltem 1A of Part Il of this report. Wl continue to monitor certain events that
impact our operations to determine if an interirre@sment of goodwill impairment should be perforedr to the next required testing date
of September 30, 2014 .

Further analysis of our operating expenses by segim@rovided below in "Segment Results."”
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Other Consolidated Results

The following tables summarize our total other imeo(expense) and income tax expense:

Three Months Ended September 30,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expense $ (329 (326) 3 1%
Other income (expense) 9 12 (3) (25)%
Total other income (expense) $ (320) (319 (6) (2%
Income tax expense $ 40 152 (112 (74)%
Nine Months Ended September 30, |
ncrease /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Interest expense $ (970 (1,009 (39 (3)%
Net (loss) on early retirement of debt — (199 (199 (100%
Other income (expense) 52 27 25 93 %
Total other income (expense) $ (91¢) 1,17) (259 (22)%
Income tax expense $ 372 332 40 12%

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased for the three monthedeBdptember 30, 2013 as compared to the threcnmentled September 30, 2012
primarily due to a reduction in amortization of dpbemiums. Interest expense decreased for thenmnimghs ended September 30, 2013 as
compared to the nine months ended September 3@, @harily due to a lower amount of debt outstagdalong with lower interest rates,
which were partially offset by a reduction in thraatization of debt premiums. See Note 3—Long-tErett and Credit Facilities and
"Liquidity and Capital Resources" below for additi information about our debt.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income reflects certain items not directhated to our core operations, including gains ass$és from non-operating asset
dispositions and impairments, our share of incoromfour 49% interest in a cellular partnershipeiiast income and foreign currency gains
and losses. Other income for the three months eSdptember 30, 2013 decreased as compared taéeenttonths ended September 30, 201-
due to a gain on sale of auction securities in 20his difference was partially offset by a redantin foreign currency losses. Other income
increased $25 million for the nine months ended@&aper 30, 2013 as compared to the nine monthge®ejgtember 30, 2012 primarily due
to a $32 million gain on the sale of wireless speuntin January 2013, which was partially offsetsbgeduction of gain on sale of auction
securities in 2013 compared to 2012.

Income Tax Expense

The effective tax rate for the three months endsute&nber 30, 2013 was (4.0)% compared to 36.0%mécomparative prior year
period, which reflects the non-deductibility of theodwill impairment for income tax purposes. Tedive tax rate for theine months ende
September 30, 2013 was (350.9)% compared to 3709%hé comparative prior year period. The 2013 yeafate effective tax rate reflects
net impact of the $1.1 billion non-deductible godtiimpairment recorded in the third quarter, adeable settlement with the Internal Revenue
Service of $33 million recorded in the second cgradnd an unfavorable accounting adjustment fardemluctible life insurance costs recor
in the first quarter, while the 2012 year-to-ddfedive tax rate reflects the reversal of a vahragllowance related to the auction rate
securities.
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Segment Result
General

We have restated previously reported segment seduét to the above-described first quarter 2018yegnzation of our business.
Segment results are summarized below:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)

Total segment revenues $ 4,26 4,31« 12,79¢ 13,00:
Total segment expenses 2,10¢ 2,071 6,11z 6,154
Total segment income $ 2,16z 2,24: 6,68 6,85(
Total margin percentage 50.7% 52.(% 52.2% 52.1%
Consumer:

Revenues $ 1,50: 1,53¢ 4,50¢ 4,64(

Expenses 58C 58t 1,65 1,72(

Income $ 928 951 2,857 2,92(

Margin percentage 61.4% 61.9% 63.2% 62.%
Business:

Revenues $ 1,54+ 1,541 4,57: 4,58¢

Expenses 95¢ 93¢ 2,77¢ 2,78¢

Income $ 58€ 60¢ 1,797 1,797

Margin percentage 38.(% 39.% 39.2% 39.2%
Wholesale:

Revenues $ 87¢ 91C 2,69¢ 2,81¢

Expenses 29¢ 304 86¢ 92¢

Income $ 58E 60€ 1,827 1,88¢

Margin percentage 66.6% 66.6% 67.8% 67.(%
Data hosting:

Revenues $ 342 327 1,02: 96C

Expenses 274 24¢ 811 71€

Income $ 68 81 21z 244

Margin percentage 19.9% 24.&% 20.7% 25.4%

Our segment revenues include all revenues fronstategic services, legacy services and data itiegras described in more detail
above. Segment revenues are based upon each ctstolassification to an individual segment. Weargpur segment revenues based upc
services provided to that segment's customers,thittexception of data hosting revenue generated fusiness and wholesale customers,
which is reported in data hosting segment reveniesteport our segment expenses for our four seggnaanfollows:

» Direct expenses, which primarily are specific expenses incurrecalrect result of providing services and productsegment
customers, along with selling, general and adnratis®e expenses that are directly associated ypigltciic segment customers or
activities; and

» Allocated expenses, which include network expenses, facilities exgsnand other expenses such as fleet and real egpnse

We do not assign depreciation and amortization es@er impairments to our segments, as the redssets and capital expenditures are
centrally managed and are not monitored by or tegdo the CODM by segment. Similarly, severanqeeesges, restructuring expenses and,
subject to an exception for our data hosting segneentain centrally managed administrative funtdigsuch as finance, information
technology, legal and human resources) are ngrassito our segments. Interest expense is alsadedlfrom segment results because we
manage our financing on a total company basis

28






Table of Contents

and have not allocated assets or debt to speeifiments. Other income (expense) does not relatertsegment operations and is therefore

excluded from our segment results.

Consumer

The operations of our consumer segment have beaacbed by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

Strategic services. We continue to focus on increasing subscribexsuofroadband services in our consumer segmentdir to
remain competitive, we believe it is important tmtinually increase our broadband network's scaopecannection speeds. As a
result, we continue to invest in our broadband oetywwhich allows for the delivery of higher spdmdadband services to a greater
number of customers. In addition, we continue fmeeour broadband marketing efforts as we competematuring market in which
most consumers already have broadband servicesld&e€ontinue to expand our strategic product offgr;, including facilities-based
video services. The expansion of our facilitiesdabgideo service infrastructure requires us torirstartup expenses in advance of
revenue that this service is expected to geneddtteough, over time, we expect that our revenuefdailitiesbased video services w
offset the expenses incurred, the timing of thi®neie growth is uncertain. We believe these effeiismprove our ability to compe
and increase our strategic revenues;

Legacy services. Our voice revenues have been, and we expect thiegontinue to be, adversely affected by acceass losses.
Intense competition and product substitution cargito drive our access line losses. For examplayroansumers are substituting
cable and wireless voice and electronic mail, texand social networking services for traditionaice telecommunications services.
We expect that these factors will continue to nieght impact our business. As a result of the expedoss of revenues associated

with access lines, we continue to offer our custenservice bundling and other product promotionisaip mitigate this trend, as

described below;

»  Service bundling and product promotions. We offer our customers the ability to bundle npiétiproducts and services. These
customers can bundle local services with otheriseswsuch as broadband, video, long-distance aredess. While we believe our
bundled service offerings can help retain custopnikey also tend to lower our profit margins in dessumer segment; and

e Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our operating structucefanus. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and regulatory

conditions.

The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our consumer segment:

Consumer Segment

Three Months Ended September 30,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services 644 603 41 7%

Legacy services 85¢ 93: (75) (8)%

Data integration 1 — 1 — %

Total revenues 1,50: 1,53¢ (33 (2)%
Segment expenses:

Direct 45¢€ 45€ (2 — %

Allocated 124 127 (3) (2%

Total expenses 58C 58¢ (5) ()%
Segment income 92:¢ 951 (28) (3%
Segment margin percentage 61.2% 61.%
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Consumer Segment

Nine Months Ended September 30,
Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 1,89: 1,781 111 6 %
Legacy services 2,617 2,85¢ (242) (8)%
Data integration 4 5 (@D} (20)%
Total revenues 4,50¢ 4,64( (132) (3)%
Segment expenses:
Direct 1,30¢ 1,347 (43 (3)%
Allocated 35¢ 378 (20) (5)%
Total expenses 1,657 1,72( (63) (4)%
Segment income $ 2,851 2,92( (69) (2%
Segment margin percentage 63.2% 62.%

Segment Income

Declines in local and long-distance services reesrassociated with access line loss largely cari&ibto a decrease in our consumer
segment income for the three and nine months eBdptember 30, 2013 as compared to the three aadmonths ended September 30, 2012
The decrease in revenues was partially offset iwei@expenses.

Segment Revenues

Consumer revenues decreased 2% and 3% for ealoh édpective three and nine month periods endetgi@ber 30, 2013 as compared
to the three and nine months ended September 3@,.28rowth in strategic services revenues wereerttan offset by the decline in legacy
services revenues. The increase in strategic ssrv@venues is due primarily to volume increasesirfacilities-based video services and
increases in the number of broadband subscribemsel as from price increases on various servicegacy services revenues decreased
primarily due to declines in local and long-distarservices associated with access line lossegirgsfrbm competitive pressures.

Segment Expenses

Consumer expenses decreased for the three mordkd &eptember 30, 2013 as compared to the threthsnendedeptember 30, 201
primarily due to decreases in bad debt expensasissland wages, real estate and power and altbeapenses, partially offset by increases in
professional fees. The decrease in allocated erpdns the three months ended September 30, 20d@w@sared to the three months ended
September 30, 2012 was primarily due to reductiometwork salaries and wages. Consumer expensesaded for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 as compared to the nine montexléSeptember 30, 2012 primarily due to decrdadesd debt expense, salaries and
wages and allocated expenses, partially offsehbyeases in professional fees. For the nine manttled September 30, 2013 as compared tc
the nine months ended September 30, 2012 , allbexigenses decreased primarily due to decreasetviork expenses, including
professional fees and salary and wages, as walreduction in fleet expenses.

Business

The operations of our business segment have bgeacted by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

e Srategic services. Our mix of total segment revenues continues taatégfrom legacy services to strategic servicesuas
commercial, enterprise, global and government casts increasingly demand customized and integiddatal Internet and voice
services. We offer diverse combinations of emerdg@uipnology products and services such as prirsge MPLS, and VolP services.
We believe these services afford our customers ff@xibility in managing their communications neeadsl enable us to improve the
effectiveness and efficiency of their operationghdugh we are experiencing price compression arstrategic services due to
competition, we expect strategic revenues fromelsesvices to continue to grow during 2013;
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» Legacy services. We face intense competition with respect to ogaty services and continue to see customers nrigratvay from
these services and into strategic services. Irtiaddbur legacy services revenues have been, angkpect they will continue to be,
adversely affected by access line losses and poicgression;

» Dataintegration. We expect both data integration revenue and thgedecosts will fluctuate from quarter to quadsrthis offering
tends to be more sensitive than others to chamgixeieconomy and in spending trends of our fedstatle and local government
customers, many of whom have recently experienabdtantial budget cuts with the prospects of aoialii future budget cuts; and

» Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our operating structucefanus. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and regulatory
conditions, while achieving operational efficierscend improving our processes through automaticmalsb expect our business
segment to benefit indirectly from efficienciesoar company-wide network operations.

The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our business segment:

Business Segment

Three Months Ended September 30,
Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) %Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 64( 602 38 6 %
Legacy services 742 771 (29 (4)%
Data integration 162 16¢ (6) (4%
Total revenues 1,54« 1,541 3 — %
Segment expenses:
Direct 84z 81¢ 24 3%
Allocated 11€ 11¢€ 2 (2)%
Total expenses 95¢ 93¢ 22 2%
Segment income $ 58¢€ 60% (19) (3)%
Segment margin percentage 38.(% 39.2%

Business Segment

Nine Months Ended September 30,
Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 1,87 1,77C 10z 6 %
Legacy services 2,23t 2,33¢ (109 (4%
Data integration 46¢€ 47€ (12 ()%
Total revenues 4,57: 4,58¢ (13 — %
Segment expenses:
Direct 2,44¢ 2,44¢ 3 — %
Allocated 327 348 (16) (5)%
Total expenses 2,77¢ 2,78¢ (13 — %
Segment income $ 1,791 1,791 — — %
Segment margin percentage 39.2% 39.2%
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Segment Income

Business income decreased for the three monthsléejgtember 30, 2013 as compared to the three mentted September 30, 2012
due to an increase in total expense. Business iacemained unchanged for the nine months endee@bpt 30, 2013 as compared to the
nine months ended September 30, 2012 primarilytalaedecrease in total revenue, which only paytiafifset by lower total expenses.

Segment Revenues

Business revenues increased slightly for the threeths ended September 30, 2013 as compared tiordgemonths endeseptember 3
2012 . Business revenues decreased slightly fanitteemonths ended September 30, 2013 as compathd hine months end&eptember 3
2012 . This decrease primarily reflected lower reies from legacy services driven by access lireeand lower data integration revenues
due to lower sales of data integration equipmehngé Jtrategic services growth came from increas&sharnet and MPLS services, which were
partially offset by decreases in private line seesi

Segment Expenses

Business expenses increased for the three mondlesi September 30, 2013 as compared to the threthsnended September 30, 2012
primarily due to increases in bad debt expensdepsmnal fees and facility cost and allocated azps, partially offset by decreases in
equipment and maintenance costs. Allocated expeatesmeased for the three months ended Septemb20388,as compared to the three
months ended September 30, 2012 primarily due¢cedses in network salaries and wages. Businesnsep decreased for the nine months
ended September 30, 2013 as compared to the ninthenended September 30, 2012 primarily due toedses in salaries, wages and benefit
equipment and maintenance costs, bad debt expads#lacated expenses, partially offset by increasg@rofessional fees and facility costs.
Allocated expenses decreased for the nine monttedeBeptember 30, 2013 as compared to the ninehmented September 30, 2012
primarily due to decreases in network expensesydimyg professional fees and salaries and wagesalpaoffset by an increase in real estate
expenses.

Wholesale

The operations of our wholesale segment have lmpadted by several significant trends, includingsthdescribed below:

»  Strategic services. Demand for our private line services (includingapl access) has begun to decline due to our iessd
optimization of their networks, industry consoliidat and technological migration. While we expedcttthese factors will continue to
negatively impact our wholesale segment, we beliegedemand for our fiber-based special accesicesrprovided to wireless
carriers for backhaul will partially offset the diee in copper-based special access services mdvmwireless carriers as they
migrate to Ethernet services, although the timind magnitude of this technological migration is emain;

e Legacy services. Our access, local services and long-distance tmgehave been and we expect will continue to beradly affected
by customer migration to more technologically adethservices, declining demand for traditional g@ervices, industry
consolidation and price compression caused by atignland rate reductions. For example, wholesahsemers are substituting ca
wireless and VolIP services for traditional voicke¢emmunications services, resulting in continueckas revenue loss. Our switched
access revenues have been and will continue tmpadted by changes related to the Connect Ameniddrdercarrier Compensation
Reform order ("CAF order") adopted by the Fedemn@unications Commission ("FCC") on October 27,201at we believe will
substantially increase the pace of reductionseratinount of switched access revenues we recemeriwholesale segment.
Conversely, the FCC instituted an access recovmayge that we believe will allow us to recover thajority of these lost revenues
directly from end users in our Consumer and Busisegments. We expect these factors will contiowatersely impact our
wholesale segment; and

*  Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our operating structurefaous. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwityrovements and changes in industry, competite@hnological and regulatory
conditions. We also expect our wholesale segmeenefit indirectly from enhanced efficiencies ur company-wide network
operations.
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The following tables summarize the results of ofjens from our wholesale segment:

Wholesale Segment

Three Months Ended September 30,
Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 562 56¢ (6) (1)%

Legacy services 31t 341 (26) (8)%

Total revenues 87¢ 91C (32 (4)%
Segment expenses:

Direct 4€ 38 8 21%

Allocated 247 26¢€ (19) (7)%

Total expenses 29¢ 304 (13) (4%
Segment income $ 58t 60€ (21) (3)%
Segment margin percentage 66.6% 66.6%

Wholesale Segment

Nine Months Ended September 30,
Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Segment revenues:

Strategic services $ 1,70¢ 1,72¢ (18) (D%

Legacy services 987 1,092 (10%) (10%

Total revenues 2,69t 2,81¢ (123 (4%
Segment expenses:

Direct 12t 131 (6) (5)%

Allocated 74% 79¢ (55) (7%

Total expenses 86¢ 92¢ (62) (7%
Segment income $ 1,821 1,88¢ (62) 3)%
Segment margin percentage 67.8% 67.(%

Segment Income

Declines in both strategic and legacy servicesmees largely contributed to a decrease in our véaddesegment income for titieee an
nine months ended September 30, 2013 as compatiee toree and nine months ended September 30,.2Dd@&eases in segment expenses |
each period did not fully offset the declines igment revenue for each comparable period.

Segment Revenues

Wholesale revenues decreased for the three andminths ended September 30, 2013 as compared tiorégeand nine months ended
September 30, 2012 . These decreases reflect tewenues from both legacy and strategic servides.decreases in legacy services revenue
reflect continuing declines in access, long-distaaed local services volumes and revenues dueteutbstitution of cable, wireless and VolP
services for traditional voice telecommunicatioes/&es. The declines in strategic services revemere due to decreases in our private line
and special access services revenues, partialigtdffy an increase in Ethernet revenues.

Segment Expenses

Wholesale expenses decreased for the three mamilkesl September 30, 2013 as compared to the threthsnende®&eptember 30, 20:
primarily due to decreases in salaries and wagesabocated expenses, which were partially offiseincreases in external commissions,



professional fees and bad debt expense. Allocadeeinses for the three months ended
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September 30, 2013 as compared to the three menttexl September 30, 2012 decreased primarily ddec®ases in salaries and wages an
facility costs. Wholesale expenses decreased éonithe months ended September 30, 2013 as comjgetteel nine months ended

September 30, 2012 primarily due to decreasedanies and wages as a result of reductions in feadcand reduced access costs and
allocated expenses, which were partially offseiroyeases in external commissions and professferal Allocated expenses for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013 as compared tinthenonths ended September 30, 2012 decreasedrjbyigiue to decreases in facility
costs, and salaries and wages.

Data Hosting

The operations of our data hosting segment couldchpacted by several significant trends, includingse described below:

e Colocation. Colocation is designed for clients seeking datderespace and power for their server and netwgr&guipment needs.
Our data centers provide our clients around thddweith a secure, high-powered, purpose-built lmeafor their IT equipment. We
anticipate continued pricing pressure for theseises as wholesale vendors continue to expand ¢iméérprise colocation operations;
however, we believe that our data center exparsiategy can help mitigate these pricing challenges

» Managed hosting. Managed hosting services provide a fully managdatisn for a customer's IT infrastructure and nataneeds,
and include dedicated and cloud hosting serviddigywand computing storage, consulting and maisggcurity services. We believe
that competitive cloud computing offerings have tedncreased pricing pressure and increased sedisconnections by our
customers, and expect those trends to continue eMenywe remain focused on expanding our managstihigdbusiness, specifically
in our cloud service offerings, which we believaikey to growth. We believe that we have continteestrengthen our cloud position
in the market by adding differentiating featurestw cloud products;

* Network services. Network services are comprised of our hosting astevork products supporting colocation and mandugesing
service offerings. Network services also includenageed VPN and bandwidth services. Segment inconihédse services has been
relatively flat due to pricing pressures on VPN &addwidth services, offset by increases in hostireg network services; and

e Operating efficiencies. We continue to evaluate our operating structucefanus. This involves balancing our segment waddan
response to our workload requirements, productiwifgrovements and changes in industry, competitaghnological and regulatory
conditions.

The following tables summarize the results of offena from our data hosting segment, which areattgorized as strategic services:

Data Hosting Segment

Three Months Ended September 30,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenues $ 34z 327 15 5%
Segment expenses 274 24¢€ 28 11%
Segment income $ 68 81 (13 (16)%

Segment margin percentage 19.9% 24.8%

Data Hosting Segment

Nine Months Ended September 30,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease) % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Segment revenues $ 1,02¢ 96( 63 7%
Segment expenses 811 71€ 95 13%
Segment income $ 21z 244 (32 (19)%

Segment margin percentage 20.7% 25.8%
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Segment Income

Segment income decreased for the three and ninghmended September 30, 2013 as compared to #edhd nine months ended
September 30, 2012 . The decline in segment incgasedue to increased segment expenses as a fiesuitacquisitions of CIBER ITO
Services ("CIBER") and Appfog in October 2012 ande]2013, respectively, in addition to the otheréased costs described below.

Segment Revenues

Data hosting revenues, which are all categorizestragegic services, increased for the three amel mionths ended September 30, 2013
as compared to the three and nine months endedr8eet 30, 2012 primarily due to the impact of mawblgosting revenue from the
acquisition of CIBER and growth in colocation reuen. For the three and nine months ended Septe&88h2013 , CIBER accounted for
approximately $14 million and $43 million, respeety, of the increases in data hosting revenues.

Segment Expenses

Data hosting expenses increased for the threeiaedwonths ended September 30, 2013 as compatkd three and nine months endec
September 30, 2012 . Higher employee related ceststing from the CIBER acquisition accounteddpproximately $14 million and
$43 million of the increases for the three and munths ended September 30, 2013 , respectivefddition, increases in data hosting
expenses attributable to higher professional fieetsyork expenses, employee benefits costs, magkatid advertising expenses, and real e
and power costs, continuing investment in cloudwginanitiatives via savvisdirect, a non-recurringndor settlement and expenses associatec
with our above-described acquisition of Appfog.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

At September 30, 2013, we held cash and cash&euig of $266 million and we had $1.8 billion dable under our $2.0 billion
revolving credit facility (referred to as our "CieBacility", which is described further below). September 30, 2013 , cash and cash
equivalents of $93 milliowere held in foreign bank accounts for the purpzffending our foreign operations. Due to varioastbrs, access
foreign cash is generally more restrictive thareasdo domestic cash.

We and our board of directors monitor our use shaaroughout the year, but with enhanced scrigany each year in connection with
the review of annual budgets. In connection withlmudgeting process in early 2018ur executive officers and board of directordeeed ou
sources and potential uses of cash over the neataleyears, including among other things the pmasly-disclosed effect of the anticipated
depletion of our federal net operating loss camyfrds by 2015. In connection therewith, the baardirectors determined that reducing our
quarterly dividend rate beginning in 2013 , togethigh implementing a share repurchase program Jdveahance our long-term ability to
balance our multiple objectives of growing our Imesis, honoring our debt and pension commitmentsretnrning cash to our shareholders.
Based on the current capital allocation objecta@groved by our board in early 2013 , during tlst three months of 2013 we anticipate
expending cash of between $750 million and $850anifor capital investment in property, plant aagliipment and capitalized software and
up to $325 million or less for dividends on our aoom stock, based on the current quarterly commumekgtividend rate of $0.54 and the
current number of outstanding common shares. We talt maturities of approximately $5.5 million otiee remainder of 2013 , and we also
anticipate expending cash for repurchasing comntasksbut the amount will largely depend on madatditions.

We will continue to monitor our future sources arsgs of cash, and anticipate that we will makestdjants to our capital allocation
strategies when, as and if determined by our bogditectors. We may also draw on our revolvingdiréacility as a source of liquidity for
operating activities and to give us additional ittty to finance, among other things, our capitalestments, repayments of debt, pension
contributions, dividends, litigation settlement pagnts, or stock repurchases.

Capital Expenditures

We incur capital expenditures on an ongoing bas@der to enhance and modernize our networks, etgffectively in our markets
and expand our service offerings. We evaluate gagxpenditure projects based on a variety of faciacluding expected strategic impacts
(such as forecasted revenue growth, operatinguptity, expense or service impacts) and our etqrboeturn on investment. The amount of
capital investment is influenced by, among othergb, demand for our services and products, cashdenerated by operating activities, cash
required for other purposes and regulatory conataers. We estimate our total capital expenditdiging the remainder of 2013 to be
approximately $750 million to $850 million .
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Our capital expenditures continue to be focusedwrstrategic services such as video, broadbandraméged hosting services as we
our continuing investment in "fiber to the towenitiatives. For more information on capital spemylisee Items 1 and 1A of our Annual Repor
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 .

In 2012 and early 2013, we accepted approximat&byriillion from Round 1 of Phase 1 of the FCC's @t America Fund ("CAF")
established by Congress to help telecommunicatiangers defray the cost of providing broadbandeasdo remote customers. We intend to
use the funds to deploy broadband service for Wbt000 homes in unserved rural areas principali@dolorado, Minnesota, New Mexico,
Virginia and Washington. In 2013, the FCC annourereather round of CAF funding and we are eligibledceive at least $90 million of
additional funding under Round 2 of Phase 1 of CisFAugust 2013, we agreed to accept $54 milliamfrRound 2 of Phase 1 of the FCC's
CAF to bring broadband services to more than 92r084l homes and businesses in unserved high-oess.a

Debt and Other Financing Arrangement

Subject to market conditions, we expect to contitaissue debt securities from time to time infiltere to refinance a substantial por
of our maturing debt, including issuing Qwest Caogiimn debt securities to refinance its maturingtd&he availability, interest rate and other
terms of any new borrowings will depend on thenggiassigned to us and Qwest Corporation by aratilily agencies, among other factors.

Following our announcement on February 13, 201éhahges in our capital allocation plans, two cradi&ncies downgraded
CenturyLink's debt credit ratings. As of the daft¢his report, the credit ratings for the seniosecured debt of CenturyLink, Inc. and Qwest
Corporation were as follows:

Agency CenturyLink, Inc. Qwest Corporation
Standard & Poor's BB BBB-
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Ba2 Baa3
Fitch Ratings BB+ BBB-

We believe the CenturyLink downgrades raised ourdyang costs and could under certain circumstatingsour access to the capital
markets. Additional downgrades of CenturyLink'siseansecured debt ratings could under certairugistances incrementally increase the
cost of our borrowing under the Credit Facility,arg other things. For further discussion of theeptal impacts of additional downgrades of
the credit ratings relating to us, Qwest Corporatio any of our other subsidiaries, see "Risk RaeteRisks Affecting our Liquidity and
Capital Resources" in Item 1A of Part Il of thipoet.

Dividends

We currently expect to continue our current practi€paying quarterly cash dividends in respeauwfcommon stock subject to our
board of director's discretion to modify or terntm¢his practice at any time. In early 2013, ouarbloof directors approved a 25.5&guction ir
our quarterly common stock dividend rate to $0.8dghare, which we believe resulted in a divideagbpt rate that is more sustainable over
the long-term, and thereby increases our flexiptlit balance our multiple objectives of managinglousiness, paying our fixed commitments
and returning cash to our shareholders. Assumigmpat at this rate of $0.54 per share, our totatldnds paid each quarter would be
approximately $325 million based on our current banof outstanding shares (which does not refleates that we might repurchase or issue
in future periods). See "Risk Factors—Risks AffiegtOur Business" in Item 1A of Part Il of this repand the discussion of our stock
repurchase program below.

Stock Repurchase Progra

In February 2013, the board of directors authorizedb repurchase up to $2 billion of our outstagdiommon stock. As of
September 30, 2013, we had approximately $764amilh stock remaining available for repurchasearrttie Stock Repurchase Program
(excluding common shares that, as of Septembe2@®(B , we had agreed to purchase under the progra®i8 million in transactions that
settled early in the fourth quarter of 2013). AN@ivember 5, 2013, we had repurchased 37.9 milmnmon shares for an aggregate market
price of $1.32 billion and an average purchaseepoic$34.90 per share. The repurchased commok kascbeen retired. We expect to
continue executing this share repurchase programagty in open market transactions, subject toketiconditions and other factors. For
additional information on repurchases made dutiregthree months ended September 30, 2013 , se@ ltérRart 11 of this report.



36




Table of Contents

Litigation Matters

In October 2013 we reached a tentative oral agrateorethe principal financial terms of a potensiattlement of a litigation matter. The
potential settlement terms include us paying €1#Rom (or approximately $233 million based on tlechange rate on September 30, 2013).
is currently uncertain if and when we might compleégotiation and signing of a definitive settletregreement, if any, and when any
payments under any such agreement would be dupaatle.

Credit Facilities

Our $2.0 billion amended and restated revolvinglitfacility matures in April 2017. The Credit Fhfyi has 18 lenders, with
commitments ranging from $2.5 million to $181 naifliand allows us to obtain revolving loans andssué up to $400 million of letters of
credit, which upon issuance will reduce the amawailable for other extensions of credit. Inteisgtssessed on borrowings using either the
LIBOR or the base rate (each as defined in the iCFedility) plus an applicable margin between 228nd 2.25% per annum for LIBOR loz
and 0.25% and 1.25% per annum for base rate lagwending on our then current senior unsecured terrg-debt rating. Our obligations
under the Credit Facility are currently guarantegdive of our subsidiaries. At September 30, 20%@ had $200 milliomn borrowings and n
letters of credit outstanding under the Credit Fgci

Under the Credit Facility, we, and our indirect sidilary, Qwest Corporation, must maintain a detEBdTDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, as definexuinCredit Facility) ratio of not more than 4.@%&nd 2.85:1.0, respectively, as of the last da
of each fiscal quarter for the four quarters thedesl. The Credit Facility also contains a neggtieglge covenant, which generally requires us
to secure equally and ratably any advances undeCtédit Facility if we pledge assets or permiidi®n our property for the benefit of other
debtholders. The Credit Facility also has a cr@ssment default provision, and the Credit Facilitglaertain of our debt securities also have
cross acceleration provisions. When present, thesasions could have a wider impact on liquiditah might otherwise arise from a defaul
acceleration of a single debt instrument. To thembthat our EBITDA is reduced by cash settlemenisidgments, including in respect of any
of the matters discussed in Note 9—CommitmentsCGomtingencies to our consolidated financial stateine Item 1 of Part | of this report,
our debt to EBITDA ratios under certain debt agresets could be adversely affected. This could reducdinancing flexibility due to potenti
restrictions on incurring additional debt undertaier provisions of our debt agreements or, in @etacumstances, could result in a default
under certain provisions of such agreements.

We also maintain a revolving letter of credit fagilwhich enables us to provide letters of creditier terms that may be more favorable
than those under the Credit Facility. At Septen88r2013 , our outstanding letters of credit tate#@32 million under this facility, which is
terminable at will by either party.

Future Contractual Obligations

For information regarding our estimated future cactiual obligations, see the MD&A discussion inéddn our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 .

Pension and Po-retirement Benefit Obligations

We are subject to material obligations under ousting defined benefit pension plans and other-petitement benefit plans. The
accounting unfunded status of our plans is measamadally at December 31. See Note 5—Employee Eenefour consolidated financial
statements in Item 1 of Part | of this report fddiéional information about our pension and othestgretirement benefit arrangements.

Benefits paid by our qualified pension plans arie plarough a trust that holds all plan assetshénfirst quarter of 2013, we made cash
contributions to the trust totaling $147 millioBased on current laws and circumstances, we expée required to make approximately $123
million in contributions to the plans in 2014 . Témmount of required contributions to our plans®2 and beyond will depend on a variety of
factors, most of which are beyond our control,ud@hg earnings on plan investments, prevailingragerates, demographic experience,
changes in plans benefits and changes in funding éand regulations.

Certain of our post-retirement health care anditifeirance benefits plans are unfunded. Severgtkthold assets that are used to help
cover the health care costs of certain retireesofA3ecember 31, 2012 , the fair value of the tasstets was $626 million ; however, a portion
of these assets is comprised of investments wittniceed liquidity. We estimate that the more ldjaissets in the trust will be adequate to
provide continuing reimbursements for covered pestement health care costs for approximately fears. Thereafter, covered benefits will
be paid either directly by us or from the trustshesremaining assets become liquid. The actuabeurof years that our more liquid assets will
fund covered benefits could be substantially shantdéonger than projected depending on multiptdes, including returns on plan assets, the



volume of claims, the timing of maturities of illigg plan assets and future changes in benefits.
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Our estimated annual long-term rate of return @ngtbnsion plans trust assets is 7.50% and fordberptirement plans trust assets
ranges from 5.34% to 7.50% based on the asseentiyrheld; however, actual returns could vary Wwide any given year.

Net Operating Loss Carryforward

We are currently using federal net operating log9¢©Ls") to offset a portion of our federal taxalihcome. We expect to deplete a
significant portion of these NOLs and certain ottleferred tax attributes by 2014, and substantallgf these tax benefits by 2015. Once our
NOLs are fully utilized, we expect that the amouwfteur cash flows dedicated to the payment of f@dexes will increase substantially. T
amounts of those payments will depend upon mangifadncluding future earnings, tax law changes farture tax circumstances. For
additional information, see "Risk Factors—Risksd®eh to our Recent Acquisitions" appearing in Itéfof Part Il of this report.

Historical Information

The following table summarizes our cash flow atigg:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

Increase /
2013 2012 (Decrease)
(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4,40¢ 4,68¢ (27¢)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,119 (1,869 254
Net cash used in financing activities (2,236 (2,759 (529

Net cash provided by operating activities decredsethe nine months ended September 30, 2013rapa@d to the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 primarily due to a lower amaofimet income adjusted for naash items along with a decrease in the changginemen
benefits partially offset by an increase in therd®in other current assets and liabilities. Oursotidated financial statements in Item 1 of
Part | in this report provide information about twmponents of net income and differences betweemoome and net cash provided by
operating activities. For additional informationoalb our operating results, see "Results of Opanatiabove.

Net cash used in investing activities increasedifemine months ended September 30, 2013 as cethfmathe nine months ended
September 30, 2012 primarily due to increased paysrfer property, plant and equipment and lessg®ds from the sale of intangible assets
or property.

Net cash used in financing activities decreasedh®mnine months ended September 30, 2013 as cethfzathe nine months ended
September 30, 2012 primarily due to a decreasaympnts on debt, early retirements of debt cos2®&P with none in 2013 and a decrease i
dividends paid due to our recently announced régludh our per share common stock dividend ratdchvivere partially offset by a significa
increase in stock repurchases (due to our recantipunced buyback program).

On August 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq Corpamat'Embarg") paid at maturity the $50 million peipal amount of its 6.75%
Notes.

On July 15, 2013, a subsidiary of Embarq paid aunitg the $59 million principal amount of its 6 8% Notes.
On June 17, 2013, QC paid at maturity the $75Ganilbrincipal amount of its floating rate Notes.

On May 23, 2013, QC issued approximately $775 arilhggregate principal amount of 6.125% Notes @3 2ncluding $25 million
principal amount that was sold pursuant to an @ietment option granted to the underwriters fa dffering in exchange for net proceeds,
after deducting underwriting discounts and expense$752 million. The Notes are unsecured oblmziand may be redeemed, in whole or i
part, on or after June 1, 2018 at a redemptioreprgual to 100% of the principal amount redeemasd atcrued interest.

On April 1, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. paid at matyrihe $176 million principal amount of its 5.50% t¥s.

On March 21, 2013, CenturyLink, Inc. issued $lidnllaggregate principal amount of 5.625% Notes2i20 in exchange for net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting discountsetpenses, of approximately $988 million. The Natee unsecured obligations and may b
redeemed, in whole or in part, at any time at @mgation price equal to the greater of par or a 'grakole” rate specified in the Notes, plus



accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption ttaddition, at any time on
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or prior to April 1, 2016, we may redeem up to 36fthe principal amount of the Notes at a redermmptidce equal to 105.625% of the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unp#ierést to the redemption date, with the net casbgeds of certain equity offerings. Under
certain circumstances, we will be required to makeffer to repurchase the Notes at a price of 16f8beir aggregate principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the repurchase date.

During the nine months ended September 30, 20Erepurchased 35 million shares of the compamstanding common stock in the
open market. These shares were repurchased fggaegate market price of $1.2 billion , or an agerpurchase price of $35.98r share. Th
repurchased common stock has been retired.

Certain Matters Related to Acquisitions

Qwest's pre-acquisition debt obligations consigt@aharily of debt securities issued by QCII and tefats subsidiaries while Savvis'
remaining long-term debt obligations consist priigaof capital leases, all of which are now incldde our consolidated debt balances. The
indentures governing Qwest's debt securities commtastomary covenants that restrict the abilit@efest or its subsidiaries from making
certain payments and investments, granting liedssatling or transferring assets. Based on cugieotimstances, we do not anticipate that
these covenants will significantly restrict ourlapito manage cash balances or transfer cash ketestities within our consolidated group of
companies as needed.

In accounting for the Qwest acquisition, we recdr@avest's debt securities at their estimated fines, which totaled $12.292 billion as
of April 1, 2011. Our acquisition date fair valugtismates were based primarily on quoted marketpric active markets and other observable
inputs where quoted market prices were not avalalthe fair value of Qwest's debt securities exeddhleir stated principal balances on the
acquisition date by $693 million, which we recordeda premium.

The table below summarizes the portions of thisniuen recognized as a reduction to interest expensgtinguished during the periods
indicated:

From April 1, 2011

Nine Months Ended thru Total Since
September 30, December 31, 2012 Acquisition
(Dollars in millions)
Amortized $ 47 24C 287
Extinguished’ — 23¢ 23¢
Total premiums recognized $ 47 4t 522z

WSee "Debt and Other Financing Arrangements” forenimiormation

The remaining premium of $171 million as of Septen®0, 2013 will reduce interest expense in fupggods, unless otherwise
extinguished.

Other Matters

CenturyLink has cash management arrangements ®iithi of its principal subsidiaries, in which st#rgial portions of the subsidiaries'
cash is regularly advanced to CenturyLink. In adaace with generally accepted accounting princjplesse advances are eliminated as
intercompany transactions. Although CenturyLinkipaically repays these advances to fund the sudr$édi' cash requirements throughout the
year, at any given point in time we may owe a saHisl sum to our subsidiaries under these advamdgsh are not recognized on ¢
consolidated balance sheets.

We also are involved in various legal proceedimgd tould have a material adverse effect on oanfifal position. See Note 9—
Commitment and Contingencies to our consolidatednitial statements in ltem 1 of Part | of this réfar the current status of such legal
proceedings, including matters involving Qwest.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inéstaates on our variable rate long-term debt akibgs and fluctuations in certain
foreign currencies. We seek to maintain a favoratileof fixed and variable rate debt in an effarfitit interest costs and cash flow volatility
resulting from changes in rates.



From time to time, we have used derivative instmit®¢o (i) lock-in or swap our exposure to changingariable interest rates for fixed
interest rates or (ii) to swap obligations to pxgd interest rates for variable interest ratesofASeptember 30, 2013 , we had no such
instruments outstanding. We have established jsliahd procedures for risk assessment and thevabpreporting and monitoring of
derivative instrument activities. We do not holdssue derivative financial
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instruments for trading or speculative purposesndg@ment periodically reviews our exposure to @gerate fluctuations and implements
strategies to manage the exposure.

There were no material changes to market riskingrfsom changes in interest rates for the nine tmoended September 30, 2013 ,
when compared to the disclosures provided in ourvahReport on Form 10-K for the year ended DecerBbhe2012 .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no special purpose or limited purposeiestihat provide off-balance sheet financing, liityi or market or credit risk support
and we do not engage in hedging or other similtiviies that expose us to any significant lialél# that are not (i) reflected on the face of the
consolidated financial statements, (ii) disclogetlote 15—Commitments and Contingencies to our aateed financial statements in Item 8
of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year eh@&cember 31, 2012 or (iii) discussed under ttzelimg "Market Risk" above.

Other Information

Our website is www.centurylink.com. We routinelyspanportant investor information in the "InvesRelations" section of our website
atir.centurylink.com. The information contained on, or that may be ssed through, our website is not part of this equbsrtreport. You may
obtain free electronic copies of our annual repont$-orm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, entreports on Form 8-K and all
amendments to those reports in the "Investor Relatisection of our websitdr(centurylink.com) under the heading "SEC Filings." These
reports are available on our website as soon asmehly practicable after we electronically filettwith the SEC.

Certain of the industry and market data (such esite of certain markets and our position withiese markets) used throughout this
report are based on independent industry publicatigovernment publications, reports by marketanesefirms or other published indepenc
sources. Some market data and statistical infoomatie also based on our good faith estimates hadrie derived from our review of internal
surveys, as well as the independent sources kidiede. This information may prove to be inaccubseause of the method by which we ob
some of the data for our estimates or becauséntfloisnation cannot always be verified with certgidue to the limits on the availability and
reliability of raw data, the voluntary nature oéttlata gathering process and other limitationsuswegrtainties. As a result, although we believe
these sources are reliable, we have not indepdgdantfied the information and cannot guarantsesitcuracy and completeness.

In addition to historical information, this MD& A includes certain forward-looking statements that are based on current expectations only,
and are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions, many of which are beyond our control. Actual events and results may differ
materially from those anticipated, estimated, projected, expressed or implied if one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if
underlying assumptions prove incorrect. Factors that could affect actual results include but are not limited to: the timing, success and overall
effects of competition from a wide variety of competitive providers; the risksinherent in rapid technological change; the effects of ongoing
changes in the regulation of the communications industry (including the outcome of regulatory or judicial proceedings relating to intercarrier
compensation, access charges, universal service, broadband deployment and net neutrality); our ability to successfully negotiate collective
bar gaining agreements on reasonabl e terms without work stoppages; our ability to effectively adjust to changes in the communications industry
and changes in the composition of our markets and product mix caused by our recent acquisitions; our ability to successfully integrate recently-
acquired operations into our incumbent operations, including the possibility that the anticipated benefits from our recent acquisitions cannot be
fully realized in a timely manner or at all, or that integrating the acquired operations will be more difficult, disruptive or costly than anticipated;
our ability to use net operating loss carryovers of Qwest in projected amounts; our ability to effectively manage our expansion opportunities,
including retaining and hiring key personnel; possible changesin the demand for, or pricing of, our products and services, including our ability
to effectively respond to increased demand for high-speed broadband services; our ability to successfully introduce new product or service
offerings on a timely and cost-effective basis; our continued access to credit markets on favorable terms; our ability to collect our receivables
fromfinancially troubled communications companies; any adverse developmentsin legal or regulatory proceedings involving us; our ability to
pay common share dividends in accordance with past practices, which may be affected by changesin our cash requirements, capital spending
plans, cash flows or financial position; unanticipated increases or other changesin our future cash requirements, whether caused by
unanticipated increases in capital expenditures, increases in pension funding requirements or otherwise; the effects of adverse weather; other
risksreferenced in thisreport (including in "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of Part |1 of this report) or fromtime to time in other of our filings with the
SEC; and the effects of more general factors such as changes in interest rates, in tax rates, in accounting policies or practices, in operating,
medical, pension or administrative costs, in general market, labor or economic conditions, or in legislation, regulation or public policy. These
and other uncertainties related to our business and our recent acquisitions are described in greater detail in Item 1A of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 , as updated and supplemented by our subsequent SEC
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reports, including this report. You should be aware that new factors may emerge fromtime to time and it is not possible for usto identify all
such factors nor can we predict the impact of each such factor on the business or the extent to which any one or more factors may cause actual
resultsto differ from those reflected in any forward-looking statements. You are further cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to update any of our forward-looking statements
for any reason.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See "Liquidity and Capital Resources—Market Rigkitem 2 above for quantitative and qualitativecifisures about market risk.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosarControls and Procedures

The effectiveness of our or any system of disclesantrols and procedures is subject to certaiitdirons, including the exercise of
judgment in designing, implementing and evaluatimgcontrols and procedures, the assumptions nsdéritifying the likelihood of futur
events and the inability to eliminate misconduahptetely. As a result, there can be no assurarateotir disclosure controls and procedures
will detect all errors or fraud. By their natureirar any system of disclosure controls and promsioan provide only reasonable assurance
regarding management's control objectives.

Our Chief Executive Officer, Glen F. Post, Ill, aowr Chief Financial Officer, R. Stewart Ewing,, Jrave evaluated the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and proced(asglefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) @&bcurities Exchange Act of 1934, or the
"Exchange Act") at September 30, 2013 . Based emrtaluation, Messrs. Post and Ewing concludedativatlisclosure controls and
procedures are designed, and are effective, tageaeasonable assurance that the information redjth be disclosed by us in the reports tha
we file under the Exchange Act is timely recordamcessed, summarized and reported and to ensatrimfbrmation required to be disclosed
in the reports that we file or submit under theltamge Act is accumulated and communicated to omagement, including Messrs. Post and
Ewing, in a manner that allows timely decisionsareiing required disclosure.

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during the third quarter of 30that materially affected, or that we
believe are reasonably likely to materially affemir internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il — OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained in Note 3Semmitments and Contingencies included in Iltem Panft | of this report is incorporated hereir
reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Any of the following risks could materially and aatgely affect our business, financial conditiosutes of operations, liquidity or
prospects. The risks described below are not thertmks facing us. Please be aware that additioeks and uncertainties not currently known
to us or that we currently deem to be immateriald@lso materially and adversely affect our buséneperations.

Risks Affecting Our Business

Increasing competition, including product substifon, continues to cause access line losses, whialiehadversely affected and cot
continue to adversely affect our operating resutsd financial condition.

We compete in a rapidly evolving and highly compegi market, and we expect competition to contitmimtensify. In addition to
competition from larger national telecommunicatipngviders, we are facing increasing competitiamfra variety of other sources, including
cable and satellite companies, wireless providemadband providers, resellers, sales agents ailtiés-based providers using their own
networks as well as those leasing parts of our oxitwn addition, regulatory developments overplast several years have generally increase
competitive pressures on our business. Due to sdrtieese and other factors, we continue to losesctines.

Some of our current and potential competitorsff@roa more comprehensive range of communicatioadycts and services, (ii) have
market presence, engineering and technical capabjland financial and other resources greater tloas, (i) own larger or more diverse
networks with greater transmission capacity or o#ftrantages, (iv) conduct operations or raisetabgi a lower cost than us, (v) are subje:
less regulation, (vi) offer greater online conten{vii) have substantially stronger brand namemsequently, these competitors may be bette
equipped to provide more attractive offerings,harge lower prices for their products and serviteslevelop and expand their
communications and network infrastructures morelkdyj to adapt more swiftly to new or emerging teslogies and changes in customer
requirements, and to devote greater resource®tmérketing and sale of their products and services

Competition could adversely impact us in severalsyancluding (i) the loss of customers and masketre, (ii) the possibility of
customers reducing their usage of our servicesittirgy to less profitable services, (iii) reducdffic on our networks, (iv) our need to exp
substantial time or money on new capital improvenpeojects, (v) our need to lower prices or inceeamrketing expenses to remain
competitive and (vi) our inability to diversify lsuccessfully offering new products or services.

We are continually taking steps to respond to tlvesepetitive pressures, but these efforts may aduzcessful. Our operating results
and financial condition would be adversely affedfdtiese initiatives are unsuccessful or insuffitiand if we otherwise are unable to
sufficiently stem or offset our continuing accdsg llosses and our revenue declines significanitiyout corresponding cost reductions. If this
occurred, our ability to service debt and pay otitdigations would also be adversely affected.

Rapid changes in technology and markets could regusubstantial expenditure of financial and otheesources in excess of contempla
levels, and any inability to respond to those chasgcould reduce our market share and adversely etffaur operating results and financial
condition.

The communications industry is experiencing sigaifit technological changes, many of which are riedudemand for our traditional
voice services or are enabling our current custentgereduce or bypass use of our networks. Singijlelie information technology services
industry is experiencing rapid changes in techrielad-urther technological change could requireowesxpend capital or other resources in
excess of currently contemplated levels, or toddige development or provision of products or smrvithat others can provide more efficiel
If we are not able to develop new products andiseswto keep pace with technological advanced,tbose products and services are not
widely accepted by customers, our ability to corapmtuld be adversely affected and our market stwarkel decline. Any inability to effective
respond to changes in technology and markets @sitdadversely affect our operating results anafimal condition, as well as our ability to
service debt and pay other obligations.

43






Table of Contents

For additional information on the risks of increch@xpenditures, see "Risk Factors—Risks Affectingldquidity and Capital
Resources—Our business requires us to incur sutateapital and operating expenses, which redocesvailable free cash flow."

Our legacy services continue to experience declinmevenues, and our efforts to offset these dedimeay not be successful.

The telephone industry has experienced a decliaedass lines and network access revenues, whigplexd with the other changes
resulting from competitive, technological and regaty developments, continue to place downwardspireson the revenues we generate fron
our legacy services.

We have taken a variety of steps to counter theskngs, including:

» anincreased focus on selling a broader randpgbiergrowth strategic services, which are describeceiaitlin Item 2 of Part | of thi
report;

» anincreased focus on serving a broader rangesifiéss, governmental and wholesale custol
e greater use of service bundles;

* acquisitions to increase our scale and stremgblie product offerings, including new products ardvices provided by our data
hosting segment.

However, some of these strategic services genlenatr profit margins than our traditional servicasd some can be expected to
experience slowing growth as increasing numbemiogxisting or potential customers subscribe és¢hnewer products. Moreover, we car
assure you that the revenues generated from ouofferings will offset revenue losses associatedhfreduced sales of our legacy products.
Similarly, we cannot assure you that our new serwviterings will be as successful as anticipatedhat we will be able to continue to grow
through acquisitions. In addition, our reliancethbind parties to provide certain of these strategic/ices could constrain our flexibility, as
described further below.

If we fail to extend or renegotiate our collectivEmrgaining agreements with our labor unions as theypire from time to time, or if ou
unionized employees were to engage in a striketheowork stoppage, our business and operating fesaould be materially harmed.

Approximately 37% of our employees are membersaoious bargaining units represented by the Comnatinits Workers of America
or the International Brotherhood of Electrical Werk From time to time, our labor agreements witios expire and we typically negotiate
the terms of these new bargaining agreements. Webmanable to reach new agreements, and uniorogegs may engage in strikes, work
slowdowns or other labor actions, which could matigrdisrupt our ability to provide services arabult in increased cost to us. In addition,
new labor agreements may impose significant newsaws us, which could impair our financial conditior results of operations in the future.
To the extent they contain benefit provisions, ¢ghagreements may also limit our flexibility to clgarbenefits in response to industry or
competitive changes. In particular, the post-empplent benefits provided under these agreements cauwiske us to incur costs not faced by
many of our competitors, which could ultimately dém our competitive position.

Our future results will suffer if we do not effeately adjust to changes in our business, and wiltther suffer if we do not effectively manag
our expanded operations.

The above-described changes in our industry haaedla higher premium on marketing, technolog&adineering and provisioning
skills. Our recent acquisitions also significardlyanged the composition of our markets and proahixct Our future success depends, in part,
on our ability to retrain our staff to acquire tremgthen skills necessary to address these chaaggswhere necessary, to attract and retain
new personnel that possess these skills.

Unfavorable general economic conditions could neiyaly impact our operating results and financial ndition.

Unfavorable general economic conditions, includimg unstable economy and credit market, could neggtaffect our business.
Worldwide economic growth has been sluggish siri@2and many experts believe that a confluendéaabbrs in the United States, Europe,
Asia and developing countries may result in a prgéa period of economic stagnation, slow growteeaanomic uncertainty. While it is
difficult to predict the ultimate impact of thesergeral economic conditions, they could adversdiycathe affordability of and consumer
demand for some of our products and services aunld cause customers to shift to lower priced préglaad services or to delay or forgo
purchases of our products and services. Thesetammlimpact, in particular, our ability to selsdretionary products or services to business
customers that are under pressure to reduce aostgjovernmental customers that have recentlyesedf substantial budget cuts with the
prospect of additional future budget cuts. Any onenore of these circumstances could cause ounuageto continue declining. Also, our



customers may encounter financial hardships or madye able to obtain adequate access to credithwgould negatively impact their
ability
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to make timely payments to us. In addition, asuised further below, unstable economic and credikets may preclude us from refinancing
maturing debt at terms that are as favorable aetfrom which we previously benefited, at termg ¢ga acceptable to us or at all. For these
reasons, among others, if the current economicitiond persist or decline, this could adverselefffour operating results and financial
condition, as well as our ability to raise capital.

We could be harmed by security breaches, damagestter significant disruptions or failures of our @tworks, IT infrastructure or related
systems, or of those we operate for certain of oustomers

To be successful, we will need to continue proygdiir customers with a high-capacity, reliable sadure network. We face the risk, as
does any company, of a security breach or sigmifidésruption of our IT infrastructure and relaswatems (including our billing systems). A
communications and IT company, we face an addédhat a security breach or other significant disian of our public networks or IT
infrastructure and related systems that we devéahsgall, operate and maintain for certain of ousibess and governmental customers could
lead to material interruptions or curtailments efysce. Moreover, due to the nature of our custenaed services, we face a heightened risk
that a security breach or disruption could resulinauthorized access to our customers' proprietatiassified information on our public
networks or internal systems or the systems thatpegate and maintain for certain of our customers.

We make significant efforts to maintain the seguaind integrity of these types of information agdtems and maintain contingency
plans in the event of security breaches or othstesy disruptions. Nonetheless, we cannot assuréhgbwur security efforts and measures wil
prevent unauthorized access to our systems, ladsstruction of data (including confidential clie@mformation), account takeovers,
unavailability of service, computer viruses, maleyasr other forms of cyber attacks or similar egefhese threats may derive from human
error, fraud, malice or sabotage on the part ofleyges, third parties or other nations, or coukliefrom accidental technological failure.
Similar to other large telecommunications companigshave been subject to a variety of securitadiies and cyber attacks, although to date
none of these have resulted in a material advéfset ®n our operating results or financial coratitiWe cannot assure you, however, that
future security breaches or disruptions would reosbccessful or damaging, especially in light efghowing frequency and sophistication of
cyber attacks and intrusions. We may be unablaticipate all potential types of attacks or intars or to implement adequate security bar
or other preventative measures, and any resultngages could be material.

Additional risks to our network and infrastructumelude:
» power losses or physical damage, whether causéicebpdverse weather conditions, terrorism or ntiee
*  capacity limitations
» software and hardware defects or malfuncti
e programming, processing and other human erroi

» other disruptions that are beyond our con

Network disruptions, security breaches and othgricant failures of the above-described systemsdd:

» disrupt the proper functioning of these networkd aystems and therefore our operations or thosertdin of our custome;

» result in the unauthorized access to, and desiny loss, theft, misappropriation or releas@miprietary, confidential, sensitive or
otherwise valuable information of ours, our custosy@ our customers' end users, including tradeetsgavhich others could use for
competitive, disruptive, destructive or otherwiserhful purposes and outcomes;

* require significant management attention orrfizial resources to remedy the damages that resudtahange our systems, including
expenses to repair systems, add new personnel/elogeadditional protective systems;

e require us to offer expensive incentives toireéxisting customers or subject us to claims fartract breach, damages, credits, fines,
penalties, termination or other remedies, partityhaith respect to service standards set by stgalatory commissions; or

» resultin a loss of business, damage our rejputamong our customers and the public generallyjest us to additional regulatory
scrutiny or expose us to litigation.

Likewise, our ability to expand and update our infation technology infrastructure in response togrowth and changing needs is
important to the continued implementation of ouwvreervice offering initiatives. Our inability to pand or
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upgrade our technology infrastructure could haweeesk consequences, which could include the deliaypl@mentation of new service
offerings, increased acquisition integration cast¢syice or billing interruptions, and the diversiaf development resources.

Any or all of the foregoing developments could haveegative impact on our results of operatiomsricial condition and cash flows.

Increases in broadband usage may cause network c#gdimitations, resulting in service disruptionseduced capacity or slowe
transmission speeds for our customers.

Video streaming services and peer-to-peer fileisgaapplications use significantly more bandwidthrt traditional Internet activity such
as web browsing and email. As utilization rates availability of these services continue to growt bigh-speed Internet customers may use
much more bandwidth than in the past. If this oscue could be required to make significant cagtgdenditures to increase network capacity
in order to avoid service disruptions, service dédgtion or slower transmission speeds for our custs. Alternatively, we could choose to
implement network management practices to redus@¢twork capacity available to bandwidth-intensiegvities during certain times in
market areas experiencing congestion, which coedstively affect our ability to retain and attraostomers in affected markets. While we
believe demand for these services may drive Bjgded Internet customers to pay for faster broadibpeeds, we may not be able to recove
costs of the necessary network investments. Thiklaesult in an adverse impact to our operatingging, results of operations and financial
condition.

We may need to defend ourselves against claims Wainfringe upon others' intellectual property rigs, or we may need to seek third-party
licenses to expand our product offerings.

From time to time, we receive notices from thirdtjgs or are named in lawsuits filed by third pestclaiming we have infringed or are
infringing upon their intellectual property rightd/e may receive similar notices or be involvedimikar lawsuits in the future. Responding to
these claims may require us to expend signifidamd atnd money defending our use of affected tedwyyplmay require us to enter into
licensing agreements requiring royalty paymentswewould not otherwise have to pay or may requg¢o pay damages. If we are required
to take one or more of these actions, our profitging may decline. In addition, in responding test claims, we may be required to stop
selling or redesign one or more of our productsasvices, which could significantly and adversdfge the way we conduct business.

Similarly, from time to time, we may need to obt#ie right to use certain patents or other intéligicproperty from third parties to be
able to offer new products and services. If we cafinense or otherwise obtain rights to use amyired technology from a third party on
reasonable terms, our ability to offer new prodactd services may be restricted, made more costiglayed.

Our reseller and sales agency arrangements expas¢oua number of risks, one or more of which mayadsely affect our business and
operating results.

We rely on reseller and sales agency arrangemetiitother companies to provide some of the servicaswe sell to our customers,
including video services and wireless products sardices. If we fail to extend or renegotiate thesangements as they expire from time to
time or if these other companies fail to fulfilleih contractual obligations to us or our customeesmay have difficulty finding alternative
arrangements and our customers may experiencetns to their services. In addition, as a res@ltesales agent, we do not control the
availability, retail price, design, function, quglireliability, customer service or branding oésle products and services, nor do we directly
control all of the marketing and promotion of th@seducts and services. To the extent that thés® aompanies make decisions that
negatively impact our ability to market and se#ittproducts and services, our business plans aald gnd our reputation could be negatively
impacted. If these reseller and sales agency araegts are unsuccessful due to one or more of ti#se our business and operating results
may be adversely affected.

Consolidation among other participants in the commigations industry may allow our competitors to cpete more effectively against us,
which could adversely affect our operating resuéiad financial condition.

The telecommunications and cable industries haperéanced substantial consolidation over the lagplte of decades, and some of our
competitors have combined with other communicatjmmasiders, resulting in larger competitors thatdngreater financial and business
resources and broader service offerings. Furthesal@ation could increase competitive pressuned,cduld adversely affect our operating
results and financial condition, as well as outighto service debt and pay other obligations.
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We have a significant amount of goodwill and othietangible assets on our balance sheet. If our godlti or other intangible assets become
impaired, we may be required to record a significarharge to earnings and reduce our stockholderguéy.

Under generally accepted accounting principlegnigible assets are tested for impairment on anaditrasis or more frequently
whenever events or circumstances indicate thaaitying value may not be recoverable. From timéne (most recently for the third quarter
of 2013), we or our predecessors have recorded lawg-cash charges to earnings. If our intangibdets are determined to be impaired in the
future, we may be required to record additionahigant, non-cash charges to earnings during gréd in which the impairment is
determined.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to contirpaying dividends at the current rate.

Decisions on whether, when and in which amounted&e any future dividend distributions will remainall times entirely at the
discretion of our board of directors, which resertlee right to change or terminate our dividendficas at any time and for any reason. Base
on current circumstances, we plan to continue aueat dividend practices. However, you should lvara that these practices are reviewed
periodically and are subject to change for reasioaismay include any of the following factors:

* we may not have enough cash to pay such divildod to changes in our cash requirements, capigalding plans, stock purchase
plans, cash flows or financial position;

» the effects of regulatory reform, including any hes to intercarrier compensation, Universal SerfAgnd or special access ru
e our desire to maintain or improve the credit ragiog our deb

» the amount of dividends that we may distribotear shareholders is subject to restrictions uhdeisiana law and is limited by
restricted payment and leverage covenants in aditdiacilities and, potentially, the terms of dojure indebtedness that we may
incur; and

« the amount of dividends that our subsidiariey dhatribute to us is subject to restrictions imgady state law, restrictions that have
been or may be imposed by state regulators in aimmewith obtaining necessary approvals for oupugitions, and restrictions
imposed by the terms of credit facilities applieatd certain subsidiaries and, potentially, thenteof any future indebtedness that
these subsidiaries may incur.

Our board of directors is free to change or susmemdlividend practices at any time. Our commoneaaders should be aware that t
have no contractual or other legal right to dividen

Our current dividend practices could limit our alify to pursue growth opportunities, repurchase skaar retire debt.

The current practice of our board of directorsdatmue to pay common share dividends reflectsamtion to distribute to our
shareholders a substantial portion of our cash.flssva result, we may not retain a sufficient amiafrcash to apply to other transactions that
could be beneficial to our shareholders or deb#rsldncluding stock buybacks, debt prepaymentapital expenditures that strengthen our
business. In addition, our ability to pursue anyerial expansion of our business through acquisstior increased capital spending will depent
more than it otherwise would on our ability to abtthird party financing. We cannot assure you thath financing will be available to us at
terms that are as favorable as those from whicpnegiously benefited, at terms that are acceptables or at all.

We rely on a limited number of key suppliers, vemsidandlords and other third parties to operatemusiness, as well as a limited number
of financial institutions to fund our revolving crdit requirements.

We depend on a limited number of suppliers and @entbr equipment and services relating to our netviinfrastructure. Our local
exchange carrier networks consist of central oféind remote sites, all with advanced digital swagcHf any of these suppliers experience
interruptions or other problems delivering or seirwy these network components on a timely basispparations could suffer significantly. To
the extent that proprietary technology of a suppi@n integral component of our network, we mayehlimited flexibility to purchase key
network components from alternative suppliers. 8iryi, our data center operations are materialijané on leasing significant amounts of
space from landlords and substantial amounts oepdwwm utility companies, and being able to rertbese arrangements from time to time
favorable terms. In addition, we rely on a limitagnber of software vendors to support our busingasagement systems. In the event it
becomes necessary to seek alternative suppliergeantbrs, we may be unable to obtain satisfaceplacement supplies, services, space or
utilities on economically attractive terms, onradly basis, or at all, which could increase costsanise disruptions in our services.
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We rely on eighteen financial institutions to piius with access to revolving credit under ouditrfacility. If one or more of these
lenders default on their funding commitments, axgess to revolving credit could be adversely afféct

Portions of our property, plant and equipment areclated on property owned by third parti

Over the past few years, certain utilities, coofeea and municipalities in certain of the statesvhich we operate have requested
significant rate increases for attaching our ptartheir facilities. To the extent that these émsitare successful in increasing the amount we p:
for these attachments, our future operating costsnerease.

In addition, we rely on rights-of-way, colocatiograements and other authorizations granted by gawvental bodies and other third
parties to locate our cable, conduit and other agtvequipment on their respective properties. if ahthese authorizations terminate or lapse,
our operations could be adversely affected.

We depend on key members of our senior managenmesnt

Our success depends largely on the skills, expegiand performance of a limited number of senificefs. Competition for senior
management in our industry is intense and we mag Héficulty retaining our current senior officess attracting new ones in the event of
terminations or resignations. For a discussioriroflar retention concerns relating to our recentgees, please see the risks described below
under the heading "Risk Factors—Risks RelatinguioRecent Acquisitions."

As a holding company, we rely on payments from ayerating companies to meet our obligatiol

As a holding company, substantially all of our im@and operating cash flow is dependent upon thengg of our subsidiaries and th
distribution of those earnings to us in the formdividends, loans or other payments. As a resudtrely upon our subsidiaries to generate the
funds necessary to meet our obligations, includligpayment of amounts owed under our long-tern. d&lr subsidiaries are separate and
distinct legal entities and have no obligation &y @ny amounts owed by us or, subject to limiteckpiions for tax-sharing or cash
management purposes, to make any funds available tio repay our obligations, whether by dividehoans or other payments. State law
applicable to each of our subsidiaries restriotsatimount of dividends that they may pay. Restmnstithat have been or may be imposed by
regulators (either in connection with obtaining e&sary approvals for our acquisitions or in corinaatith our regulated operations), and
restrictions imposed by credit agreements applectbtertain of our subsidiaries may limit the amtoaf funds that our subsidiaries are
permitted to transfer to us, including the amoudrdividends that may be paid to us. Moreover, agints to receive assets of any subsidiary
upon its liquidation or reorganization will be effively subordinated to the claims of creditorgtadt subsidiary, including trade creditors. See
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finarn€@idition and Results of Operations—Liquidity anapal Resources" in Item 2 of Part |
of this report for further discussion on these pratt

Risks Relating to our Recent Acquisitions
We expect to incur substantial expenses relatethmintegration of Qwest.

We have incurred, and expect to continue to insuibbstantial expenses in connection with the integraf Qwest's business, operations,
networks, systems, technologies, policies and phaes with our own. We have integrated a numbeuofystems, and we continue to work
towards completing the planned integration of @maining systems. While we have assumed that aicéetvel of transaction and integration
expenses will be incurred, there are a numberatbfa beyond our control that could affect theltataount or the timing of our integration
expenses. Many of the expenses that will be induiye their nature, are difficult to estimate aetaly at the present time.

We may be unable to integrate successfully into aeg CenturyLink our recently-acquired operations dmealize the anticipated benefits of
our recent acquisitions.

We acquired Embarq, Qwest and Savvis during a dguiyirmonth period between mid-2009 to mid-2011e8dacquisitions involved
the combination of companies which previously ofetas independent public companies. We have divatel will continue to devote,
significant management attention and resourcestégiating the business practices and operatiohegdcy CenturyLink and the acquired
companies. We may encounter difficulties in thegnation process, including the following:

» the inability to successfully combine our busises in a manner that permits the combined comigeaghieve the cost savings and
operating synergies anticipated to result fromabguisitions, either due to technological challengersonnel shortages, strikes or
otherwise, any of which would result in the antatgd benefits of the acquisitions not being redligartly or wholly in the time frame



anticipated or at all;

* lost sales as a result of customers deciding ndo tousiness with the combined compi
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« the complexities associated with managing thmlined businesses out of several different locatand integrating personnel from
multiple companies, while at the same time attengptid provide consistent, high-quality products aadrices under a unified culture;

* the additional complexities of combining comgmwith different histories, regulatory restricpsales forces, marketing strategies,
product markets and customer bases;

« the failure to retain key employees, some of whomia be critical to integrating or expanding theng@anies
» potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen insezhexpenses or regulatory conditions associatidtié acquisitions; al

« performance shortfalls at one or all of the camips as a result of the diversion of managemattéstion caused by integrating the
companies' operations.

For all these reasons, you should be aware tigapissible that the remaining integration proaeasd result in the distraction of our
management, the disruption of our ongoing busineasconsistencies in our products, services, stadg] controls, procedures and policies,
any of which could adversely affect our abilitynh@intain relationships with customers, vendorsemgloyees or to achieve the anticipated
benefits of our recent acquisitions, or could othise adversely affect our business and financallts.

The Qwest and Embarq acquisitions changed the geéf our local exchange markets to include moreda urban areas, with which we
have limited operating experience.

Prior to our acquisition of Embarq, we provideddbexchange telephone services to predominanth} emeas and small to mid-size
cities. Embarq's local exchange markets includex\legas, Nevada and suburbs of Orlando and sestbved large U.S. cities, and we have
operated these more dense markets only since ndigl-ZDwest's markets included Phoenix, Arizona, Ren@olorado, MinneapolisSt. Paul
Minnesota, Seattle, Washington, Salt Lake City hJtnd Portland, Oregon. Compared to our legacketsrthese urban markets, on average
are substantially denser and experienced greatessdine losses prior to being acquired by us.|&\ihé believe our strategies and operating
models developed serving rural and smaller madaatssuccessfully be applied to larger markets, ammot assure you of this. Our business,
financial performance and prospects could be haifreat current strategies or operating models catwe successfully applied to larger
markets, or are required to be changed or abandoregjust to differences in these larger markets.

We cannot assure you whether, when or in what amtauwe will be able to use Qwest's net operatingéss

At December 31, 2012 , we had approximately $4libbiof federal net operating losses, or NOLs, ethielate primarily to pre-
acquisition losses of Qwest. Under certain circamsts, these NOLs can be used to offset our fideral and certain taxable income.

The acquisition of Qwest caused an "ownership changder federal tax laws relating to the use ol HQAs a result, these laws could
limit our ability to use their NOLs and certain ettdeferred tax attributes. Further limitationsldoapply if we are deemed to undergo an
ownership change in the future. Despite this, weeekto use substantially all of these NOLs antageother deferred tax attributes as an
offset to our federal future taxable income by 2QlEhough the timing of that use will depend uplom consolidated group's future earnings
and future tax circumstances.

Our acquisitions have increased our exposure to tisks of fluctuations in energy costs, power ougsgand availability of electrical
resources.

Through the acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis, wetadded a significant number of data center fa&sli which are susceptible to
regional costs and supply of power and electricalgr outages. We attempt to limit exposure to sgystewntime by using backup generators
and power supplies. However, we may not be ablienibour exposure entirely even with these pratew in place. In addition, our energy
costs can fluctuate significantly or increase femdety of reasons, including changes in legistafind regulation. Several pending proposals
designed to reduce greenhouse emissions couldastiadly increase our energy costs. As energy dostease, we may not always be able to
pass on the increased costs of energy to our gliedtich could harm our business. Power and cooggirements at our data centers are als
increasing as a result of the increasing power delaf today's servers. Since we rely on thirdigsuto provide our data centers with power
sufficient to meet our clients' power needs, odad&nters could have a limited or inadequate atnafuglectrical resources. Our clients'
demand for power may also exceed the power capacitiger data centers, which may limit our abiligyfully utilize these data centers. This
could adversely affect our relationships with oligritss and hinder our ability to run our data cesitevhich could harm our business.
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Our inability to renew data center leases, or renew favorable terms, could have a negative impactaur financial results.

A significant majority of the data centers we acediin the Qwest and Savvis acquisitions are leasddchave lease terms that expire
between 2013 and 2031. The majority of these lgaisrsde us with the opportunity to renew the leaseur option for periods generally
ranging from five to ten years. Many of these realeoptions, however, provide that rent for the wealeperiod will be equal to the fair market
rental rate at the time of renewal. If the fair keirental rates are significantly higher than curent rental rates, we may be unable to offset
these costs by charging more for our services, wbizld have a negative impact on our financialltesAlso, it is possible that a landlord
may insist on other financially unfavorable reneteains or, where no further option to renew existsct not to renew altogether.

Our acquisitions of Qwest and Savvis have increased exposure to the risks of operating internatialty.

Prior to acquiring Qwest on April 1, 2011, subsiglht all of our operations were historically coraded within the continental United
States. Although Qwest has historically conductedes operations overseas, the acquisition of Saviduly 15, 2011, increased the
importance of international operations to our fataperations, growth and prospects.

As a result of our recent acquisitions, our foreigerations are subject to varying degrees of egigui in each of the foreign jurisdictio
in which we provide services. Local laws and regoiles, and their interpretation and enforcemeritedsignificantly among those
jurisdictions, and can change significantly ovardi Future regulatory, judicial and legislative nfpas or interpretations may have a matt
adverse effect on our ability to deliver servicathim various foreign jurisdictions. Many of thefeeeign laws and regulations relating to
communications services are more restrictive thah lws and regulations, particularly those retato content distributed over the Internet.
For example, the European Union has enacted aelatation system that, once implemented by indizidnember states, will involve
requirements to retain certain Internet protocolPy data that could have an impact on our opamatin Europe. Moreover, national regulatory
frameworks that are consistent with the policied squirements of the World Trade Organization hag recently been, or are still being,
enacted in many countries. Accordingly, many cadastare still in the early stages of providing éod adapting to a liberalized
telecommunications market. As a result, in thesgkata we may encounter more protracted and diffiprdcedures to obtain licenses neces
to provide the full set of products we offer.

In addition to these international regulatory risksme of the other risks inherent in conductingitess internationally include:

e tax, licensing, currency, political or other busiaeestrictions or requiremer
e import and export restrictior
* longer payment cycles and problems collecting actreceivable

« additional U.S. and other regulation of non-detiweoperations, including regulation under theetgm Corrupt Practices Act, or
FCPA, as well as other anti-corruption laws;

» fluctuations in currency exchange ra

» the ability to secure and maintain the necessaygipal and telecommunications infrastructure;

challenges in staffing and managing foreign opena

Any one or more of these factors could adversdlcabur international operations.

Moreover, in order to effectively compete in centtoreign jurisdictions, it is frequently necessaryrequired to establish joint ventures,
strategic alliances or marketing arrangements lwithl operators, partners or agents. Reliance cal [wperators, partners or agents could
expose us to the risk of being unable to contrelstope or quality of our overseas services orymtsg or being held liable under the FCPA or
other anti-corruption laws for actions taken by stategic or local partners or agents even thdligbe partners or agents may not themselve
be subject to the FCPA or other applicable antitgquiion laws. Any determination that we have vieththe FCPA or other antbrruption law:
could have a material adverse effect on our busjnesults of operations, reputation or prospects.

Any additional future acquisitions by us would swdgt us to additional business, operating and findalaisks, the impact of which cannc
presently be evaluated, and could adversely immagtcapital structure or financial position

From time to time in the future we may pursue oteguisition opportunities. To the extent we aagaibusiness that is highly leveragec
or is otherwise subject to a high level of risk, may be affected by the currently unascertainables iof that
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business. Accordingly, there is no current basiyém to evaluate the possible merits or risksmgf particular business or assets that we may
acquire. In addition, the financing of any futuogaisition completed by us could adversely impagtaapital structure or financial position, as
any such financing would likely include the issuauo€ additional securities or the borrowing of diddial funds. Except as required by law or
applicable securities exchange listing standarésgavnot expect to ask our shareholders to vongrproposed acquisition. Moreover, we
generally do not announce our acquisitions untihaee entered into a preliminary or definitive agnent.

Risks Relating to Legal and Regulatory Matters

Any adverse outcome of the KPNQwest litigation,adher material litigation of Qwest, Savvis or Cemylink, could have a material advers
impact on our financial condition and operating redts, on the trading price of our securities and aur ability to access the capital
markets.

As described in Note 9—Commitments and Contingenttieour consolidated financial statements in lfeaf Part | of this report, the
KPNQwest matters present material and significelsrto us. In the aggregate, the plaintiffs in KiBRNQwest matters seek billions of dollars
in damages. We continue to defend vigorously ag#ies2006 matter brought by Cargill Financial M&t&k Plc and Citibank, N.A., and, in the
event that a settlement of the 2010 matter brobglihe KPNQwest trustees is not finalized, we wdhtinue to defend against that matter
vigorously, as well. We are currently unable tovyide an estimate as to the timing of the resolutibthese matters.

We can give no assurance as to the impacts oriraurdial results or financial condition that magirahtely result from the 2006 matter
brought by Cargill Financial Markets, Plc and Catitk, N.A. The same is true of the 2010 matter bnbby the KPNQwest trustees in the e\
that the tentative settlement described in Note @mfitments and Contingencies is not finalized. Uilienate outcomes of these matters
remain uncertain, and substantial settlementsdgments in these matters could have a signifiecapact on us. The magnitude of such
settlements or judgments resulting from these msatieuld materially and adversely affect our firiahcondition and ability to meet our debt
obligations, potentially impacting our credit ra# our ability to access capital markets and ourgliance with debt covenants. In addition,
the magnitude of any such settlements or judgnmmaagscause us to draw down significantly on our dzshnces, which might force us to
obtain additional financing or explore other methou generate cash. Such methods could includmgadditional debt securities or selling
assets.

There are other material proceedings pending agasss described in the above-referenced Ndiepending on their outcome, any of
these matters could have a material adverse affectir financial position or operating results. ¥é@ give you no assurances as to the impac
of these matters on our operating results or firmondition.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and ateetefore exposed to restrictions on our manner @iy business and a variety of claims
relating to such regulation.

General. We are subject to significant regulation by Besleral Communications Commission ("FCC"), whiehulates interstate
communications, and state utility commissions, Whiggulate intrastate communications. Generallymwust obtain and maintain certificate:
authority from the FCC and regulatory bodies in tetates where we offer regulated services, andre&subject to numerous, and often quite
detailed, requirements and interpretations und#ertd, state and local laws, rules and regulatidosordingly, we cannot ensure that we are
always considered to be in compliance with all ¢hesjuirements at any single point in time. Thenags responsible for the enforcement of
these laws, rules and regulations may initiate iimggior actions based on customer complaints dhein own initiative.

Regulation of the telecommunications industry aangis to change rapidly, and the regulatory enviemtraaries substantially from
jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Notwithstanding a et movement towards alternative regulation, atsmiigl portion of our local voice servic
revenue remains subject to FCC and state utilitgragssion pricing regulation, which periodically eggs us to pricing or earnings disputes
and could expose us to unanticipated price declinesrexchange carriers have filed complaintsarious forums requesting reductions in our
access rates. In addition, several long distanoeighers are disputing amounts owed to us for cagyoice over Internet Protocol ("VolP")
traffic, or traffic they claim to be VolIP traffignd are refusing to pay such amounts. There cao lBssurance that future regulatory, judicie
legislative activities will not have a material &ise effect on our operations, or that regulatothiad parties will not raise material issues with
regard to our compliance or noncompliance with igpple regulations.

Risks associated with recent changes in federal relgtion.  On October 27, 2011, the FCC adopted the Camxraerica and
Intercarrier Compensation Reform order ("CAF orjlértended to reform the existing regulatory regitmeecognize ongoing shifts to new
technologies, including VolP, and gradually re-direderal universal service funding to foster oravide broadband coverage. This initial
ruling provides for a multi-year transition oveethext decade as intercarrier compensation chargeagduced, federal universal service
funding is explicitly targeted to broadband depleym) and subscriber line charges paid by end ustomers are gradually increased. We
expect these changes will substantially increase
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the pace of reductions in the amount of switche@ss revenues we receive in our wholesale busiwdds, creating opportunities for increa
in federal Universal Service Fund ("USF") and fatawvenue streams. Several judicial challengebéddAF order are pending and additional
future challenges are possible, any of which cailtiek or delay the FCC's proposed changes. Iniaddiased on the outcome of the FCC
proceedings, various state commissions may conshdarges to their universal service funds or itdtasaccess rates. Moreover, rulemaking
designed to implement the CAF order is not compketel several FCC proceedings relating to the axfeain pending. For these and other
reasons, we cannot predict the ultimate impadiese proceedings at this time.

In addition, during the last few years CongrestherFCC has initiated various other changes, inctu@) broadband stimulus projects,
support funds and similar plans and (i) new "netwmreutrality” rules. The FCC is also considerifhguges in the regulation of special access
services. Any of these recent or pending initisgigeuld adversely affect our operations or findn@sults.

Risks posed by costs of regulatory compliance. Regulations continue to create significant cimmge costs for us. Challenges to our
tariffs by regulators or third parties or delaysbtaining certifications and regulatory approvaisild cause us to incur substantial legal and
administrative expenses, and, if successful, shalenges could adversely affect the rates thatneeable to charge our customers. Our
business also may be impacted by legislation agala&on imposing new or greater obligations redateregulations or laws related to
broadband deployment, bolstering homeland secunityeasing disaster recovery requirements, minigienvironmental impacts, enhancing
privacy, or addressing other issues that impacbasmess, including the Communications Assistdoceaw Enforcement Act (which requit
communications carriers to ensure that their eqaiftnfacilities, and services are able to fac#itatithorized electronic surveillance), and laws
governing local number portability and customermpietary network information requirements. We expaa compliance costs to increase if
future laws or regulations continue to increaseahligations to assist other governmental agencies.

Risks posed by other regulations. All of our operations are also subject to deatgrof environmental, safety, health and other
governmental regulations. We monitor our compliawié federal, state and local regulations govegriire management, discharge and
disposal of hazardous and environmentally sensitisterials. Although we believe that we are in chamge with these regulations, our
management, discharge or disposal of hazardousrannmentally sensitive materials might exposéoudaims or actions that could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarnmatition and operating results.

Regulatory changes in the communications industyuid adversely affect our business by facilitatiggeater competition against u:

For over 15 years, Congress and the FCC have skanral steps that have resulted in increased d@mpemong communications
service providers. Many of the FCC's regulatiomsain subject to judicial review and additional mbkings, thus making it difficult to
determine the ultimate impact of these changessamd our competitors.

"Net neutrality" legislation or regulation could Imit our ability to operate our high-speed data bnsss profitably and to manage our
broadband facilities efficiently.

In order to continue to provide quality high-speeda service at attractive prices, we believe vegribe continued flexibility to respond
to changing consumer demands, to manage bandwsdtielefficiently and to invest in our networks. HE&C's "net neutrality” regulations,
which are currently on appeal to the federal ctrcaurt, could adversely impact our ability to agterour high-speed data network profitably
and to undertake the upgrades and implement netmarkagement practices that may be needed to certtimrovide high quality high-speed
data services, and could therefore negatively imnpacability to compete effectively.

We may be liable for the material that content prders distribute over our network.

The law relating to the liability of private netwooperators for information carried on, stored iesdminated through their networks is
still unsettled. As such, we could be exposeddallelaims relating to content disseminated onmaiworks. Claims could challenge the
accuracy of materials on our network, or could Imganatters such as defamation, invasion of privaogopyright infringement. If we need to
take costly measures to reduce our exposure te tigs, or are required to defend ourselves agairth claims, our financial results could be
negatively affected.

We are subject to significant regulations that litrour flexibility.

As a diversified full service incumbent local exnba carrier in most of our key markets, we havéitimally been subject to significant
regulation that does not apply to many of our catitgms. This regulation imposes substantial commaécosts on us and restricts our ability to
change rates, to compete and to respond rapidiganging industry conditions. As our
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business becomes increasingly competitive, reguylalisparities between us and our competitors couftede our ability to compete.
We are subject to franchising requirements that ¢dimpede our expansion opportunities.

We may be required to obtain from municipal autfesioperating franchises to install or expandiiteas. Some of these franchises may
require us to pay franchise fees. These franchigiggirements generally apply to our fiber transpod competitive local exchange carrier
operations, and to our facilities-based video sewi These requirements could delay us in exparmdingperations or increase the costs of
providing these services.

We are exposed to risks arising out of recent Iégfion affecting U.S. public companies.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relatimptporate governance and public disclosure, dhatuthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act and
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumereetmin Act, and related regulations implementedeteder, are increasing legal and
financial compliance costs and making some acatiwithore time consuming. Any failure to successfotlyimely complete annual assessment
of our internal controls required by Section 404haf Sarbanes-Oxley Act could subject us to sanstiw investigation by regulatory
authorities. Any such action could adversely affaatfinancial results or investors' confidenceisn

For a more thorough discussion of the regulat@ayas that may affect our business, see "Regulaitiditém 1of Part | of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeR@12 .

Risks Affecting our Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our high debt levels pose risks to our viabilitydmay make us more vulnerable to adverse economit @ompetitive conditions, as well as
other adverse developments.

We continue to carry significant debt. As of Sepbem30, 2013, our consolidated debt was approxin&20.6 billion . Approximately
$ 2.6 billion of our debt securities come due dbhernext thirty-six months.

Our significant levels of debt can adversely afigxin several other respects, including (i) limgtthe ability of CenturyLink and its
subsidiaries to access the capital markets, (ppsing CenturyLink and its subsidiaries to the aékredit rating downgrades, as described
further below in the next captioned risk factoif) findering our flexibility to plan for or rea¢t changing market, industry or economic
conditions, (iv) limiting the amount of cash flowailable for future operations, acquisitions, deudls, stock repurchases or other uses,
(v) making us more vulnerable to economic or indudbwnturns, including interest rate increases, @i placing us at a competitive
disadvantage compared to less leveraged compefitoeseffects of each of these factors could bensified if we increase our borrowings.

We expect to periodically require financing to meet debt obligations as they come due. While weerily believe that we will have
access to financial resources sufficient to meeefimance our obligations when they come due, amot fully anticipate our future financial
condition or the future condition of the credit iketis or the economy generally. Due to current bikties in the economy and credit markets,
we may not be able to refinance maturing debtratgehat are as favorable as those from which weipusly benefited, at terms that are
acceptable to us or at all. We may also need taimlaidditional financing or investigate other methto generate cash (such as further cost
reductions or the sale of assets) under a varfatiraimstances, including if revenues and caskigeal by operations decline, if economic
conditions weaken, if competitive pressures in@e#dsegulatory requirements change, if we areliregl to contribute a material amount of
cash to our pension plans, if we are required tirb® pay other post-retirement benefits signiftbaearlier than anticipated, if our payments
for federal taxes increase faster or in greaterantsothan currently anticipated, if we become stttije significant judgments or settlements in
one or more of the matters discussed in Note 9—Citiments and Contingencies to our consolidated firsdrstatements in Item 1 of Part | of
this report, if we engage in any acquisitions avéf undertake substantial capital projects or oihigatives that increase our cash requirem
We can give no assurance that this additional imanwill be available on terms that are acceptédbles or at all.

Certain of our debt instruments have cross paymeiatult or cross acceleration provisions. Whengmgghese provisions could have a
wider impact on liquidity than might otherwise &isom a default or acceleration of a single dabtrument. Any such event could adversely
affect our ability to conduct business or accessctpital markets and could adversely impact cedlitratings. See "Management's Discussiol
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©pkrations—Liquidity and Capital Resources" in [t2mof Part | of this report for additional
information about our credit facility.
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Any downgrade in the credit ratings of us or ourféiates could limit our ability to obtain future ihancing, increase our borrowing costs a
adversely affect the market price of our existinglit securities or otherwise impair our businessdncial condition and results of
operations.

Nationally recognized credit rating organizatioasé issued credit ratings relating to our long-teeht and the longerm debt of sever:
of our subsidiaries. There can be no assurancatlyatating assigned to any of these debt secsisitit remain in effect for any given period
time or that any such ratings will not be lowersdspended or withdrawn entirely by a rating agefiég that rating agency's judgment,
circumstances so warrant. A downgrade of any ofaleeedit ratings could adversely affect the mapkiee of some or all of our outstanding
debt securities, limit our access to the capitalkeiz or otherwise adversely affect the availabiit other new financing on favorable terms, if
at all, result in more restrictive covenants inemgnents governing the terms of any future indelgsslthat we may incur, increase our cost of
borrowing, and impair our business, financial ctindiand results of operations.

Our debt agreements and the debt agreements ofsalosidiaries allow us to incur significantly moreetht, which could exacerbate the other
risks described in this report.

The terms of our debt instruments and the debtunstnts of our subsidiaries permit additional inedbess. Additional debt may be
necessary for many reasons, including those disdussmediately above. Incremental borrowings omsethat impose additional financial
risks could exacerbate the other risks describékisreport.

Our business requires us to incur substantial cagiand operating expenses, which reduce our avaliéafsee cash flow.

Our business is capital intensive, and we antieipiaét our capital requirements will continue tosinificant in the coming years. As
discussed further under "Risk Factors—Risks AffegtDur Business—Increases in broadband usage mag c&twork capacity limitations,
resulting in service disruptions, reduced capamitglower transmission speeds for our customansréased bandwidth consumption by
consumers and businesses have placed increasedateorathe transmission capacity of our networksel determine that our networks must
be expanded to handle these increased demandsaykeanequired to make substantial capital experatt even though there is no assuranc
that the return on our investment will be satisfagtIn addition, many of our growth initiativeseacapital intensive and changes in technology
could require further spending. In addition to istieg in expanded networks, new products or neWwrtelogies, we must from time to time
replace some of the equipment that supports oditivaal services as that equipment ages, evergtihthe revenue base from those services i
not growing. While we believe that our planned ledfecapital expenditures will meet both our mai@ece and core growth requirements, this
may not be the case if demands on our network moatio accelerate or other circumstances underlyimgxpectations change. Increased
spending could, among other things, adversely affecoperating margins, cash flows, results ofrapiens and financial position.

Similarly, we continue to anticipate incurring staydial operating expenses to support our incumberntices and growth initiatives.
Although we have successfully reduced our operaipenses over the past few years, we may be utmhlegher reduce these costs, even if
revenues in some of our lines of business are dsitig. If so, our operating margins will be advirgmpacted.

We are subject to material obligations under ourigting defined benefit pension plans and other postirement benefit plans, much of
which is currently unfunded.

We are currently subject to material obligationdemour defined benefit pension plans and othet-feisement benefit plans. As of
December 31, 2012 , our pension plans and thefousur other post-retirement benefit plans weressantially underfunded from an
accounting standpoint. See Note 5—Employee Benefitgir consolidated financial statements in Iteof Part | of this report.

The funded status of our qualified pension plantkésdifference between the value of plan asseatglabenefit obligation. Adverse
changes in interest rates or market conditions,rgnaher assumptions and factors, could causendisant increase in our benefit obligation
or a significant decrease in the value of plantas3dese adverse changes could require us tolmateta material amount of cash to our
pension plans or could accelerate the timing ofiireg cash payments. The actual amount of requettibutions to our plans in future
periods will depend on a variety of factors, mdsivhich are beyond our control, including earnilogsplan investments, prevailing interest
rates, demographic experience, changes in plarefiteeand changes in funding laws and regulatiémg. future material cash contributions
could have a negative impact on our liquidity bgiueing our cash flows.

As noted above, certain of our post-retirementthezdre and life insurance benefits plans are anhatly unfunded.
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For more information on our obligations under oefimed benefit pension plans and other post-retrgrbenefit plans, please see
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finarn€@idition and Results of Operations—Liquidity anab@al Resources—Pension and
Post-retirement Benefit Obligations" in Item 2 @irPl of this report.

We plan to access the public debt markets, and amnot assure you that these markets will remaindref disruptions.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness tleaittend to refinance over the next several ygaiscipally through the issuance of
debt securities of CenturyLink, Qwest Corporatiofoth. Our ability to arrange additional financwdl depend on, among other factors, our
financial position, performance, and credit ratirgswell as prevailing market conditions and ofaetors beyond our control. Prevailing
market conditions could be adversely affected leyahgoing disruptions in the European sovereigi aelkets, the failure of the United
States to reduce its deficit in amounts deemed teufficient, possible further downgrades in theddrratings of the U.S. debt, contractions or
limited growth in the economy or other similar acheeeconomic developments in the U.S. or abroatability in the global financial markets
has from time to time resulted in periodic vol#ilin the capital markets. This volatility couldnlit our access to the credit markets, leading to
higher borrowing costs or, in some cases, the litabd obtain financing on terms that are accefgtdb us, or at all. Any such failure to obtain
additional financing could jeopardize our abilibyrepay, refinance or reduce debt obligations.

Other Risks

If conditions or assumptions differ from the judgmeés, assumptions or estimates used in our critieacounting policies, our consolidate
financial statements and related disclosures coble materially affected

The preparation of financial statements and reldigclosures in conformity with U.S. generally gutesl accounting principles requires
management to make judgments, assumptions andagssiitinat affect the amounts reported in our caetield financial statements and
accompanying notes. Our critical accounting posicighich are described in "Management's DiscussmhAnalysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Fekcand Estimates” in Item 7 of Part Il of our AahReport on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2012, describe those signifamtunting policies and methods used in the pagijparof our consolidated financial
statements that are considered "critical" becausg tequire judgments, assumptions and estimaé¢srthterially impact our consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures. vesalt, if future events or assumptions differ gfigantly from the judgments, assumptions anc
estimates in our critical accounting policies, thesents or assumptions could have a material ingraour consolidated financial statements
and related disclosures.

We face hurricane and other natural disaster riskghich can disrupt our operations and cause us mair substantial additional capital an
operating costs.

A substantial number of our facilities are locaitedrlorida, Alabama, Louisiana, Texas, North Cara)iSouth Carolina and other coastal
states, which subjects them to the risks assocwitbdsevere tropical storms, hurricanes and toseadincluding downed telephone lines,
flooded facilities, power outages, fuel shortagisnaged or destroyed property and equipment, anklimerruptions. Although we maintain
property and casualty insurance on our plant (eatuour outside plant) and may under certain cvstances be able to seek recovery of <
additional costs through increased rates, onlyrigroof our additional costs directly related tak hurricanes and natural disasters have
historically been recoverable. We cannot prediottivbr we will continue to be able to obtain inseeafor hazard-related damages or, if
obtainable and carried, whether this insurancebeiladequate to cover our losses. In addition,xpea any insurance of this nature to be
subject to substantial deductibles and to provideofemium adjustments based on claims. Any futhazard-related costs and work
interruptions could adversely affect our operatiand our financial condition.

Tax audits or changes in tax laws could adverseffeat us.

Like all large businesses, we are subject to fratjaed regular audits by the Internal Revenue 8eras well as state and local tax
authorities. These audits could subject us toitdilities if adverse positions are taken by thieseauthorities.

We believe that we have adequately provided foctaxingencies. However, our tax audits and exatiing. may result in tax liabilities
that differ materially from those that we have mgiaed in our consolidated financial statementsaBee the ultimate outcomes of all of these
matters are uncertain, we can give no assuranievasether an adverse result from one or moreahtiwill have a material effect on our
financial results.

Effective for tax years beginning after 2012, Trexfayer Relief Act of 2012 results in certain higheme taxpayers being subject to
increased tax rates on dividends and capital gaidditionally, these high-income taxpayers are alsbject to a 3.8% Medicare tax on net
investment income. These or other potential in@e#s tax rates could reduce demand for our stehich could potentially depress its trading



price.
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Our agreements and organizational documents and laggble law could limit another party's ability tacquire us.

A number of provisions in our agreements and omgitinal documents and various provisions of applie law may delay, defer or
prevent a future takeover of CenturyLink unlessték@over is approved by our board of directorsess of our debt instruments require us to
offer to repay our debt incurred thereunder inaglent of a change of control, which could rendsr such transaction more expensive to a
potential acquiror. For additional information, e see our Registration Statement on Form 8-Aéd fvith the SEC July 1, 2009. This could
deprive our shareholders of any related takeovemnpm.
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ITEM 2.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In February 2013, our board of directors authorithedrepurchase of up to an aggregate of $2 bitfioour outstanding common shares.

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The new repurchase program terminates on FebriargQil5. During the three months ended Septemhe&2@(@3 , we repurchased

approximately 11.3 million shares of our outstagdiommon stock in the open market. These sharesmepurchased for an aggregate marke

price of $385 million or an average purchase poic®34.14 per share. The common stock repurchaagtéden retired.

The following table contains information about s&aof our previously-issued common stock that weparchased under our Stock

Repurchase Program:

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as

Average Price Part of Publicly

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That
May Yet Be Purchased

Total Number of Paid Per Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Shares Purchased Share Programs Programs
Period
July 2013 3,697,58! 35.61 3,697,588 % 1,017,031,61
August 2013 3,884,46! 34.2¢ 3,884,46! 883,936,47
September 2013 3,693,81! 32.4¢ 3,693,811 763,931,12
S| 11,275,87. 34.1¢ 11,275,87

The following table contains information about ssaof our previously-issued common stock that watveld from delivering during the

third quarter of 2013 to employees to satisfy thepirobligations related to stock-based awards:

Period

July 2013
August 2013
September 2013

Total

Total Number of

Shares Withheld Average Price Paid
for Taxes Per Share
7,09¢ % 35.17
767 36.2¢
37¢ 32.4¢
8,24t
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibits identified in parentheses below are om Wiith the SEC and are incorporated herein by eefs. All other exhibits are provided
as part of this electronic submission.

Exhibit
Number Description
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as oflegctd6, 2008, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., Embar
Corporation and Cajun Acquisition Company (incogted by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of CenturyLinkg.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784&dilwith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 30, 2008).

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as ofl 212010, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., itssdlary SB44
Acquisition Company, and Qwest Communications hé&onal Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K élo. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and e
Commission on April 27, 2010).

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as ofl 26,2011, by and among CenturyLink, Inc., SAVVIS;. and
Mimi Acquisition Company (incorporated by refererioe€exhibit 2.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Repon
Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Sedig$ and Exchange Commission on April 27, 2011).

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatib@enturyLink, Inc., as amended through May ZB,.2
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Ceytimk, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Naf1-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on May 30, 2012).

3.2 Bylaws of CenturyLink, Inc., as amended arstiated through November 4, 2010 (incorporated fereace to
Exhibit 3.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report Form 10-Q for the period ended September 300 ZBile
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on November 5, 2010).

4.1 Form of common stock certificate (incorporaigdeference to Exhibit 4.10 of CenturyLink, IsdRegistration
Statement on Form S-3 filed with the Securities Brdhange Commission on March 2, 2012 (Registration
No. 333-179888)).

4.2 Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'syBleing Credit Facility.

a. Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, datetlAysril 6, 2012, by and among CenturyLink, Inadathe
lenders and agents named therein (incorporatedfbyence to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Gant
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on April 11,
2012).

b. Guarantee Agreement, dated as of April 6, 20¢2nd among the original guarantors named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Ceyltimk, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Nif1-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on April 11, 2012), as assumed by two aduftio
guarantors under an assumption agreement, datgfdviesy 23, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Eithib
4.2(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report oorfa 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013 (Fde N
001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exchangen@iission on August 8, 2013).

4.3 Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'sMd_oan.

a. Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2042abd among CenturyLink, Inc., the several banksaher
financial institutions or entities from time to tnparties thereto, and CoBank, ACB, as adminisgatgent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Ceyltimk, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Nif1-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on April 20, 2012).

b. Guarantee Agreement, dated as of April 18, 2B¢2nd among the original guarantors named therei
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Ceyltimk, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File Nif1-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on April 20, 2012), as assumed by two aduftio
guarantors under an assumption agreement, datgfdvesy 23, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Eithib
4.3(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report oorfa 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2013 (Fde N
001-07784) filed with the Securities and ExchangenBiission on August 8, 2013).

4.4 Instruments relating to CenturyLink, Inc.'dfeisenior debt?

a. Form of Indenture, by and between Century Telap Enterprises, Inc. (currently named CenturyLink.)
and First American Bank & Trust of Louisiana, assiee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Registration Statement on F&+& (File No. No. 33-52915) filed with the Secwa#iand
Exchange Commission on March 31, 1994).

(). Form of 7.2% Senior Notes, Series D, due 2(02&orporated by reference to Exhibit 4.27 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe year ended December 31, 1995 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 18, 1996).

@ Certain of the items in Sections 4.4, 4.5 and #.6nfit supplemental indentures or other instruregaverning debt that has been retired, or (iBméf
trustees who may have been replaced, acquiredemted by similar changes. In accordance with 16&h(b) (4) (iii) (A) of Regulation S-K, copies of



certain instruments defining the rights of holdefrsertain of our long-term debt are not filed hveith. Pursuant to this regulation, we hereby agoefarnish a
copy of any such instrument to the SEC upon request
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(ii). Form of 6.875% Debentures, Series G, dueB2Qiacorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K tbe year ended December 31, 1997 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on March 16, 1998).

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Fafyrti4, 2005, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. énity
named CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Beigdesignating and outlining the terms and
conditions of CenturyLink's 5% Senior Notes, Selksiue 2015 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Borm 8-K (File No. 000-50260) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar2(@).

(). Form of 5% Senior Notes, Series M, due 2015 (ina@fed by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit -
of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8#l¢ No. 000-50260) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 15, 2005).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Maé; 2007, by and between CenturyTel, Inc. (cdlyen
named CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions Bank, as Beigdesignating and outlining the terms and
conditions of CenturyLink's 6.0% Senior Notes, 88, due 2017 and 5.5% Senior Notes, Series O, due
2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 eh@ryLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File

No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exd@@ommission on March 29, 2007).

(). Form of 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 28dd 5.5% Senior Notes, Series O, due 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhidil of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Setig$ and Exchange Commission on March 29,
2007).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Seper 21, 2009, by and between CenturyTel, Inc.
(currently named CenturyLink, Inc.) and Regions IBas Trustee, designating and outlining the terms
and conditions of CenturyLink's 7.60% Senior Notes;ies P, due 2039 and 6.15% Senior Notes,
Series Q, due 2019 (incorporated by reference todibd.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on September 22,
2009).

(). Form of 7.60% Senior Notes, Series P, due92a18 6.15% Senior Notes, Series Q, due 2019
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibil of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Sedig$ and Exchange Commission on
September 22, 2009).

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 16n2011, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and Begi
Bank, as Trustee, designating and outlining theseaind conditions of CenturyLink's 5.15% Senior
Notes, Series R, due 2017 and 6.45% Senior Noge®sSS, due 2021 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Borm 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16,)2011

(). Form of 5.15% Senior Notes, Series R, duer2@id 6.45% Senior Notes, Series S, due 2021
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibi2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Setig$ and Exchange Commission on June 16,
2011).

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as oEMaR2, 2012, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and
Regions Bank, as Trustee, designating and outlitiagerms and conditions of CenturyLink's 5.80%
Senior Notes, Series T, due 2022 and 7.65% SerttedNSeries U, due 2042 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink's Current Report oorfa 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on March 122201

(). Form of 5.80% Senior Notes, Series T, due282d 7.65% Senior Notes, Series U, due 2042
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibil of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on March 12,
2012).

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Mafg 2013, by and between CenturyLink, Inc. and
Regions Bank, as Trustee, designating and outlitiegerms and conditions of CenturyLink's 5.625%
Senior Notes, Series V, due 2020 (incorporatecebgrence to Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink's Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 21, 2013).

(). Form of 5.625% Senior Notes, Series V, due®(@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit A to
Exhibit 4.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report Borm 8-K (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 213201

4.5 Instruments relating to indebtedness of Q@eshmunications International, Inc. and its subsidsa

a.

Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1990, by aetivieen The Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph
Company (currently named Qwest Corporation) andHihst National Bank of Chicago (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Qwest Corporation's AalrReport on Form 10-K for the year ended



December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-03040) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 13, 2004).
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b.

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofil&#, 1991, by and between U S WEST
Communications, Inc. (currently named Qwest Corfiang and The First National Bank of
Chicago (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8west Corporation's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (Rd. 001-03040) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 13, 2004).

Indenture, dated as of April 15, 1990, by aetheen Northwestern Bell Telephone Company
(predecessor to Qwest Corporation) and The FirsbNal Bank of Chicago (incorporated by refereree t
Exhibit 4.5(b) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly R@pon Form 109 for the period ended March 31, 2(
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities aixthange Commission on May 10, 2012).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofil&&, 1991, by and between U S WEST
Communications, Inc. (currently named Qwest Corfiang and The First National Bank of
Chicago (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8west Corporation's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (Rd. 001-03040) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 13, 2004).

Indenture, dated as of June 29, 1998, by armhgrd S WEST Capital Funding, Inc. (currently named
Qwest Capital Funding, Inc.), U S WEST, Inc. (presesor to Qwest Communications International Inc.)
and The First National Bank of Chicago, as trugiteeorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(a) of U S
WEST, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (File N61614087) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 18, 1998).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as oJ8®, 2000, by and among U S WEST Capital
Funding, Inc. (currently named Qwest Capital Fugdinc.), U S WEST, Inc. (predecessor to
Qwest Communications International Inc.) and Bamie @rust Company, N.A., as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 of Qw@smmunications International Inc.'s Quarte
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June GO0 ZFile No. 001-15577) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 1000

Indenture, dated as of November 4, 1998, bytmtaleen Qwest Communications International Ind. an
Bankers Trust Company (incorporated by referendextabit 4.1(e) of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Registration Statement on F8rh (File No. 333-71603) filed with the Securitarsd
Exchange Commission on February 2, 1999).

Indenture, dated as of November 27, 1998, bybatween Qwest Communications International Ind. a
Bankers Trust Company (incorporated by referendextabit 4.1(d) of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Registration Statement on F8rh (File No. 333-71603) filed with the Securitaesd
Exchange Commission on February 2, 1999).

Indenture, dated as of October 15, 1999, bylmtdeen US West Communications, Inc. (currently
named Qwest Corporation) and Bank One Trust Compdmy., as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4(b) of Qwest Corporation's Annual Repantform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999
(File No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on March 3, 2000).

(). First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of ¥aid 9, 2004, by and between Qwest Corporation
and U.S. Bank National Association (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.22 of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Quarterly Répor Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2004 (File No. 001-15577) filed \tlith Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 5, 2004).

(ii).  Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as afeli7, 2005, by and between Qwest Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.2 of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Current ReparfForm 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Jun2(@).

(iif).  Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated agwodust 8, 2006, by and between Qwest Corporation
and U.S. Bank National Association (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Current ReparfForm 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Augud@3).

(iv). Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofyM&, 2007, by and between Qwest Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Current ReparfForm 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May Q872

(v).  Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofilA#, 2009, by and between Qwest Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Current ReparfForm 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on ApriD89).

(vi). Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Ju?@18, by and between Qwest Corporation

U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.8 of Qwest Corporation's
Form A (File Nn 00°-02040) filed with the Sectiritiee and Fxchanne Coramin nn Tiine -~



2011).
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(vii). Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated aSeptember 21, 2011, by and between Qwest
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association ¢iporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 of
Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-0304&df with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 20, 2011).

(viii). Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Octob&041, by and between Qwest Corporation
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-03040dilwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 4, 2011).

(ix) Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofilApr2012, by and between Qwest Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File
No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities and Exg@@@ommission on March 30, 2012).

(x)  Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated asioé 25, 2012, by and between Qwest Corporation
and U.S. Bank National Association (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.12 of Qwest
Corporation's Form 8-A (File No. 001-03040) fileittwthe Securities and Exchange Commission
on June 22, 2012).

(xi) Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May223,3, by and between Qwest Corporation
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Qwest Corporation's Form 8-A (File
No. 001-03040) filed with the Securities and Exg@@ommission on May 22, 2013).

Indenture, dated as of February 5, 2004, byaamoing Qwest Communications International Inc., §we
Services Corporation, Qwest Capital Funding, Imcl &P. Morgan Trust Company, National Association
(incorporated by reference to 4.17 of Qwest Comugations International Inc.'s Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200& (Rd. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 11, 2004).

().  First Supplemental Indenture, dated as okJLlin, 2005, by and among Qwest Communications
International Inc., Qwest Services Corporation, @@apital Funding, Inc. and U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 4.1 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-Ki¢Mlo. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 3, 2005).

(ii).  Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as gft8mber 17, 2009, by and among Qwest
Communications International Inc., Qwest ServicegpBration, Qwest Capital Funding, Inc. and
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Current Reporform 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on SeptePih&009).

(iii). Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated asgasfuary 12, 2010, by and among Qwest
Communications International Inc., Qwest Servicegp@ration, Qwest Capital Funding, Inc. and
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.1 of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Current Reporform 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on JanBargQ10).

4.6 Instruments relating to indebtedness of Emkangporation.

a.

Indenture, dated as of May 17, 2006, by anddwert Embarg Corporation and J.P. Morgan Trust
Company, National Association, a national bankisgpaiation, as trustee (incorporated by referemce t
Exhibit 4.1 of Embarq Corporation's Current Remort-orm 8-K (File No. 001-32732) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 18, 2006)

7.082% Global Note due 2016 of Embarq Corponatincorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
Embarqg Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktf@r year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-
32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 9, 2007).

7.995% Global Note due 2036 of Embarq Corponafincorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to
Embarqg Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktf@r year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-
32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 9, 2007).

4.7 Intercompany debt instruments.

a.

Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of April 2, 2@ursuant to which Embarqg Corporation may bot
from an affiliate of CenturyLink, Inc. up to $2.8lion on a revolving basis (incorporated by refae to
Exhibit 4.7(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30,
2012 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on November 8, 2012).

Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of April 2812, pursuant to which Qwest Corporation may
borrow from an affiliate of CenturyLink, Inc. up 1.0 billion on a revolving basis (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7(b) of CenturyLink, Indsiarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2012 (File No. 001-07784) filed wtlith Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 8, 2012).
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C.

Revolving Promissory Note, dated as of SepterdBe2012, pursuant to which Qwest Communications
International, Inc. may borrow from an affiliate @énturyLink, Inc. up to $3.0 billion on a revolgn
basis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8faCenturyLink Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fo
the year ended December 31, 2012 (File No. 001-@)/féd with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 1, 2013).

10.1 Qualified Employee Benefit Plans of Centuni,ilnc. (excluding several narrow-based qualifighs that
cover union employees or other limited groups oplyees).

a.

CenturyLink Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan and Trastamended and restated through December 31,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2007), as amended by the First Amentlarehthe Second Amendment thereto, each dated
as of December 31, 2007 (incorporated by referemé&xhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ7 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar2@®B), as amended by the Third Amendment
thereto dated as of November 20, 2008 (incorporaye@ference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of

CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K the year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on February 27, 2009), as amended by the
Fourth Amendment thereto dated as of June 30, g68rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on

August 7, 2009), as amended by the Fifth Amendrereto dated as of September 15, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2010), as amended by the Sixth Amendthereto, dated as of December 30, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) oht@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2010), as amended by the Seventh Amentihereto, effective May 20, 2010 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) of CenturyLink, IsdQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filied the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 5, 2010) and as amended by the Eighth Ament thereto, effective January 1, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(a) oht@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2011).

CenturyLink Union 401(k) Plan and Trust, as adesl and restated through December 31, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2007), as amended by the First Amendtltheneto dated as of May 29, 2007 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, I'sdQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filedwite Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 7, 2008), as amended by the Second Amendmergtthdated as of December 31, 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2007 (File No. 001-0774B4) dith the Securities and Exchange Commission
on February 29, 2008), as amended by the Third Aimemt thereto dated as of November 20, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on February 27, 2009), as amended by the Fourthn@lment thereto dated as of June 30, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07fi&4) with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on August 7, 2009), as amended by the Fifth Amemdriereto dated as of September 15, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2010), as amended by the Sixth Amendthereto, dated as of December 30, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2010), as amended by the Seventh Amentthereto, effective May 20, 2010 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of CenturyLink, I'sdQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended September 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filied the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 5, 2010) and as amended by the Eighth Ament thereto, effective January 1, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2011).
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C. CenturyLink Retirement Plan, as amended artdtezsthrough December 31, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, IndAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2007), as amended by Amendment No. lthei@ed as of April 2, 2007 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, Indsiarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on May 7,
2008), as amended by Amendment No. 2 thereto deatefl December 31, 2007 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, InAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 29, 2008), as amended by Amendment Neergto dated as of October 24, 2008 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) CenturyLink, InAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 27, 2009), as amended by Amendment Natetichs of June 30, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, In®siarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with trec&ities and Exchange Commission on August 7,
2009), as amended by Amendment No. 5 thereto datef September 15, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, InAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2010), as amended by Amendment No. 6tihedated as of December 30, 2009 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of CenturyLink, I'scAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2010), as amended by Amendment No. 7 tiheeéfective at various dates during 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(c) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended September 30, 2010 (File No. GUB4) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 5, 2010) and as amendedimsndment No. 8 thereto, effective January 1,
2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.bfcCenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File No.@0A84) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 1, 2011).

10.2 Stock-based Incentive Plans and Agreemer@zofuryLink

a. Amended and Restated 1983 Restricted Stock &aamended and restated through February 23, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(a) oh@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-0774&4) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2010).

b. Amended and Restated 2000 Incentive Compemnstan, as amended through May 23, 2000
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foeth
period ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 001-0778djlfilith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 11, 2000) and amendment thereto dated l&pf29, 2003 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2003
(File No. 001-7784) filed with the Securities anxtBange Commission on August 14, 2003).

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant t® #0900 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated as of
May 21, 2001, entered into between CenturyLink, &nd its officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10K for the year ended December
2001 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on March 15, 2002).

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanttie 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated as of
February 25, 2002, entered into between Centuryllimk and its officers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(d) (ii) of CenturyLinknd.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-07784) filét the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 27, 2003).

C. Amended and Restated 2002 Directors Stock @tlan, dated as of February 25, 2004 (incorpotayed
reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, IndAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 12, 2004) and amendment thereto dated astob@r 24, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(d) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteasd Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009).

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant te thregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. in connection with options grashte the outside directors as of May 10, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended September 30, 2002 (File No. (rB) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 14, 2002).

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. in connection with options grashte the outside directors as of May 9, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) ¢fiCenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form KO-



for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No.@0A84) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 12, 2004).
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(iii)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanttie foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. in connection with options grashte the outside directors as of May 7, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(d) @f)CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2005 (File Na-00784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 16, 2006).

Amended and Restated 2002 Management Incebtwgensation Plan, dated as of February 25, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) oi@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-077&4) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 12, 2004) and amendment thereto datefl@stober 24, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009).

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(vii)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant te thregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and certain of its officers anglyklemployees at various dates during 2002
following May 9, 2002 (incorporated by referenceeixhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended Septer®®e2002 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Novembe2(eR).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuantaeegoing plan and dated as of February 24, 2003,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and itscefifs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f)
(i) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exg@@@ommission on March 27, 2003).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanfdcegoing plan and dated as of February 25, 2004,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and itscefifs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f)
(iif) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Fort®-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on March 12, 2004).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of February 24,
2003, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. asexecutive officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly pt@t on Form 10-Q for the period ended

March 31, 2003 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on
May 14, 2003).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarhe foregoing plan and dated as of February 25,
2004, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. aneéiecutive officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(f) (v) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarty Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2004 (File No. 000-50260) filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on
May 7, 2004).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuantdeefjoing plan and dated as of February 17, 2005,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and its exge officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(e) (v) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s AnnuakRort on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004 (File No. 000-50260) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
March 16, 2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tddhegoing plan and dated as of February 17,
2005, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. aneéiecutive officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(e) (vi) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s AnauReport on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2004 (File No. 000-50260) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on
March 16, 2005).

Amended and Restated 2005 Directors Stock Btaamended and restated through February 23, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f) on@eyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K foeth
year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-0774) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 1, 2010).

(i)

(ii)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside direc@assof May 13, 2005 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Current Repon Form 8-K (File No. 0080260) filed witt
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May @352

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside direc@asof May 12, 2006 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly p@t on Form 10-Q for the period ended

June 30, 2006 (File No. 001-07784) filed with trec&ities and Exchange Commission on
August 3, 2006).



64




Table of Contents

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(Vi)

(viii)

(ix)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuanthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside direcassof May 11, 2007 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(f) (iii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Anmal Report on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its outside directassof May 9, 2008 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 (f) (iv) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annuédeport on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 27, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuanhe foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 2009,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and eacditsafutside directors on such date who
remained on the Board following July 1, 2009 (irpmmated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(b) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the period ended June 30, 2009 (File

No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exa@@@ommission on August 7, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 8, 2009,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and eacitsafutside directors who retired on July 1,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2fcenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (#de001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of July 2, 2009
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and eacitsafutside directors named to the Board on
July 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl(d) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2008 ({fo. 001-07784) filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on August 7, 2009).

Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tofibregoing plan and dated as of July 2, 2009, edter
into between CenturyLink, Inc. and William A. Oweingpayment of Mr. Owens' 2009
supplemental chairman's fees (incorporated byeafay to Exhibit 10.2(e) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endiede 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Augu2009).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21,
2010, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. aneésef its outside directors on such date
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended June 30, 2010 (File No. 0028@Y filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 6, 2010).

Amended and Restated 2005 Management Incentive @wsagion Plan, as amended and restated thi
February 23, 2010 (incorporated by reference tdlixh0.2(g) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report o
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200@ (Rd. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 1, 2010).

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant e thregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and certain officers and key eaygles at various dates since May 12, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended September 30, 2005 (File Q&-@7784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 9, 2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and certain officers and key eaygles at various dates since May 12, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended September 30, 2005 (File Q&-@7784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 9, 2005).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanttie foregoing plan and dated as of February 21,
2006, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. aaeiecutive officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(g) (iii) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Anral Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 16, 2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursutarthe foregoing plan and dated as of February 21,
2006, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. aaeéiecutive officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2(g) (iv) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s AnauReport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 16, 2006).

Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant @ fitregoing plan and dated as of February 26,

2007, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. an@xecutive officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly pat on Form 1-Q for the period ende



March 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on
May 9, 2007).
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(vi) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of February 26,
2007, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. asexecutive officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly p@t on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on
May 9, 2007).

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of February 21,
2008, entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. asexecutive officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly p@t on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-07784) filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission on
May 7, 2008).

(viii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tdahegoing plan and dated as of February 26,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(@enturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2009 (Nite 001-07784) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2009).

(ix) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of March 8, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended March 31, 2010 (File No. 0GZ8%) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 7, 2010).

Amended and Restated CenturyLink Legacy Embarq Eo8ty Incentive Plan, as amended and res
through February 23, 2010 (incorporated by refezgndExhibit 10.2(h) of CenturyLink, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ9 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 1,2010

() Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and fouit®butside directors as of such date
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended June 30, 2010 (File No. 00484@7 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 6, 2010).

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuarthe foregoing plan and dated as of May 21, 2010,
entered into between CenturyLink, Inc. and Willi&mOwens in payment of Mr. Owens' 2010
supplemental chairman's fees (incorporated byeafsr to Exhibit 10.3 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endiede 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Augud 8)).

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, dated&September 7, 2010, entered into between
CenturyLink, Inc. and Dennis G. Huber (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.16 of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended September 30, 2010 (File
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exa@a@ommission on November 5, 2010).

Form of Retention Award Agreement, pursuarth®equity incentive plans of CenturyLink or Embarq
and dated as of August 23, 2010, entered into EtEnturyLink, Inc. and certain officers and key
employees as of such date (incorporated by referenExhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended Septer@®eP010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on NovembedH))2

CenturyLink 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (incorpted by reference to Appendix B of CenturyLinik;.lg

Proxy Statement for its 2011 Annual Meeting of &hatders (File No. 001-07784) filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on April 6, 2011

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for exegaitbfficers used in 2011 and 2012 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(a) (i) of CenturyLinkglis Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 30, 2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed whth Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 9, 2011).

(i)  Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for nonfragement directors used since 2011 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2(a) (ii) of CenturyLirkc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2011 (File No. 001-0778d}l filith the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 9, 2011).

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement &tecutive officers used since May 2013.
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plaredias of January 1, 1984, as amended and restatdd a
November 16, 1995 (incorporated by reference talkitxh0.1(f) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repom o

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 199% (Rd. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Erae
Commission on March 18, 1996) and amendment theliatd as of November 21, 1996 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(f) of CenturyLink, IncAsinual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31,
1996 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteged Exchange Commission on March 17, 1997), amentim
thereto dated as of February 25, 1997 (incorpotaye@ference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, IsiQuarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended Marchl®®B7 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitaes
Exchange Commission on May 8, 1997), amendmengtihelated as of April 25, 2001 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s@@erly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endeddia1,
2001 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteasd Exchange Commission on May 15, 2001), amentimen
thereto dated as of April 17, 2000 (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.3(a) of CenturyLink, IscAnnual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ1 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Secustand
Exchange Commission on March 15, 2002) and amentinereto dated as of February 27, 2007 (incorpdrat
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of CenturyLink, In€sarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period endigae 30,
2007 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on August 8, 2007).

Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, 2008 Rastnt, effective January 1, 2008, (incorporatedeligrence to
Exhibit 10.3(c) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, Z60&
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Exad@@ommission on February 29, 2009) and amendment
thereto dated as of October 24, 2008 (incorporayeference to Exhibit 10.3(c) of CenturyLink, IscAnnual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembelBa8 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Secustend
Exchange Commission on March 27, 2009) and ameniiereto dated as of December 27, 2010 (incorpdrat
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of CenturyLink, IndAsnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Becurities and Exchange Commission on MarcB11)2

Supplemental Defined Benefit Pension Pldiecéfe as of January 1, 2012 (incorporated byresfee to
Exhibit 10.5 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report Borm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201lé (F
No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities and Ex@@Commission on February 28, 2012).

Amended and Restated Salary Continuatioradilisy) Plan for Officers, dated as of November 2691
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of @eyitink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear
ended December 31, 1991).

2010 Executive Officer Short-Term Incentivedg?am (incorporated by reference to Appendix B of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s 2010 Proxy Statement on ForrA {Bile No. 001-07784) filed with the Securitiesdan
Exchange Commission on April 7, 2010).

Amended and Restated CenturyLink 2001 Empgl&teck Purchase Plan, dated as of June 30, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Ceyitink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foetheriod
ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-07784) filed with Securities and Exchange Commission on August 7
20009).

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered in¢tween CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its dirests of July 1,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.&efturyLink, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K &il
No. 001-07784) with the Securities and Exchange @msion on July 1, 2009).

Form of Indemnification Agreement enteretd imetween CenturyLink, Inc. and each of its officas of July 1,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.&ehturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the
period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-0778d}lfilith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 7, 2009).

Change of Control Agreement, effective Janta2011, by and between Glen F. Post, Il andt@gLink, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of @eyitink, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear
ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) fifeH the Securities and Exchange Commission on Marc
2011).

Form of Change of Control Agreement, effective dapu., 2011 between CenturyLink, Inc. and eachsobiher
executive officers (incorporated by reference taiix 10.12 of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Report Barm 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (File NG-0D784) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 1, 2011).

Amended and Restated CenturyLink, Inc. Bdrifgsinsurance Plan for Executive Officers, dasedof April 3,
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.€ehturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the
period ended March 31, 2008 (File No. 001-0778é}fivith the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 7, 2008) and First Amendment thereto (incoreatdy reference to Exhibit 10.13 of CenturyLirkgc.'s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period enSedtember 30, 2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed \tlith
Securities and Exchange Commission on NovembedH))2

Certain Material Agreements and Plans of &pkCorporation.
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Embarq Corporation 2006 Equity Incentive Pémamended and restated (incorporated by refetence
Exhibit 99.1 of the Registration Statement on F&48 filed by CenturyLink, Inc. (File No. 001-07784)
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on JuB009).

Form of 2007 Award Agreement for executive adfis of Embarg Corporation (incorporated by refeeen
to Exhibit 10.1 of Embarg Corporation's Current 8#pn Form 8-K (File No. 001-32372) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februarg2@¥7).

Form of 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agregm(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
Embarqg Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-Ke(Rio. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 4, 2008).

Form of 2009 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agresm(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
EmbargCorporation's Current Report on Form 8-Keg(Nb. 001-32732) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 5, 2009).

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (incorpedsby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Embarq
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File RI61-32372) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 4, 2008).

Amendment to Outstanding RSUs granted in 20@¥7 2008 under the Embarg Corporation 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi16 of Embarq Corporation's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200& (Rd. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 13, 2009).

Form of 2006 Award Agreement, entered into leevEmbarqg Corporation and Richard A. Gephardt
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Engp@prporation's Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and Exa@@@ommission on August 1, 2006), as amended by
the amendment thereto dated as of June 26, 2088 fiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 (m) of
CenturyLink, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 104D the period ended June 30, 2009 (File No. 001-
07784) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on August 7, 2009).

Amended and Restated Executive SeveranceiRtdinding Form of Participation Agreement entered
into between Embarq Corporation and William E. Gh@ecorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of
Embarqg Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 1f»Qhe period ended September 30, 2008 (File
No. 001-32372) filed with the Securities and Exag@@ommission on October 30, 2008).

Embarg Supplemental Executive Retirement Plargmended and restated as of January 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of Engb@orporation’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008 (File No. 001-323I&2) With the Securities and Exchange Commission
on February 13, 2009), amendment thereto dateflBsaember 27, 2010 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.14(o) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2010 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteaxd Exchange Commission on March 1, 2011) and
second amendment thereto as of dated as of NovelBb&011 (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.14(k) of CenturyLink, Inc.'s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2011 (File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securiteasd Exchange Commission on February 28, 2012).

10.15 Certain Material Agreements and Plans of §@@®mmunications International Inc. or Sawvis, Inc

a.

Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and res{atedrporated by reference to Annex A of Qwest
Communications International Inc.'s Proxy Statenfenthe 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (File
No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and Exa@@@ommission on March 29, 2007).

Forms of restricted stock, performance shadeogtion agreements used under Equity Incentive,Rla
amended and restated (incorporated by referengghibit 10.2 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-KlgMlo. 001-15577) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 24, 2005; Exhib2 d® Qwest Communication International Inc.'s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmamn31, 2005 (File No. 001-15577) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februargd®; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communication
International Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 1@e@the period ended March 31, 2006 (File No. 001-
15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on May 3, 2006; Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest
Communication International Inc.'s Annual Reportrammm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006
(File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on February 8, 2007;

Exhibit 10.3 of Qwest Communication Internationat.Is Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-
15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on September 15, 2008; Exhibit 10.2 of
Qwest Communication International Inc.'s Quart&gport on Form 1@ for the period ended March
2009 (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on April 30, 2009; and
Exhibit 10.2 of Qwest Communication Internationat.Is Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-15577) fiéd the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 15, 2011).
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C. Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployeedirs, as amended and restated, Amendment to
Deferred Compensation Plan for Nonemployee Direcdfimcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
Qwest Communications International Inc.'s Curregp®t on Form 8-K (File No. 001-15577) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Decetf)e2005 and Exhibit 10.8 to Qwest
Communication International Inc.'s Quarterly Remort~orm 10-Q for the period ended September 30,
2008 (File No. 001-15577) filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission on October 29, 2008) and
Amendment No. 2011-1 to Deferred Compensation RlaNonemployee Directors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.15(c) of CenturyLink, IscAnnual Report for the year ended December 311 201
(File No. 001-07784) filed with the Securities dfxthange Commission on February 28, 2012).

d. Qwest Nonqualified Pension Plan (incorporateddierence to Exhibit 10.9 of Qwest Communications
International Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fioe year ended December 31, 2009 (File No. 001-
15577) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on February 16, 2010).

e. SAVVIS, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 Incenfiempensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Quarterly Report Borm 106 for the period ended March 31, 2006 (I
No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and Exg@@@ommission on May 5, 2006), as amended by
Amendment No. 1 (incorporated by reference to BxHi®.6 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200& (Rd. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 26, 2007); Amentliden2 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Current Report onrfo8-K (File No. 000-29375) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 15, 200vendment No. 3 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Quarterly Report Borm 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2007 (File
No. 000-29375) filed with the Securities and Ex@@ommission on July 31,

2007); Amendment No. 4 (incorporated by referemcexhibit 10.2 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 000-29375) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on May 22, 2009);
and Amendment No. 5 (incorporated by referencextulit 10.2 of SAVVIS, Inc.'s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 000-29375) filed with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission on May 22, 2009).

Certification of the Chief Executive Officef CenturyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of Barbanes-Oxley

Certification of the Chief Financial Officef CenturyLink, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of Barbanes-Oxley

September 30, 2013, formatted in XBRL: (i) the Goitwted Statements of Operations, (ii) the Conlséd
Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income, (i@)@onsolidated Balance Sheets, (iv) the Consolidate

12* Ratio of (Loss) Earnings to Fixed Charges
31.1*
Act of 2002.
31.2*
Act of 2002.

32* Certification of the Chief Executive Officené Chief Financial Officer of CenturyLink, Inc. fuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101* Financial statements from the Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q of CenturyLink, Inc. for the periedded
Statements of Cash Flows, (v) the ConsolidateceB8tamts of Stockholders' Equity and (vi) the Notesur
Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Exhibit filed herewith.
Note:

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines dmatt€rs of our Board of Director Committees areted on our website at
www.centurylink.com.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized on November 7, 2013 .

CENTURYLINK, INC.
/s DAVID D. COLE

BY: David D. Cole Executive Vice President, Controlleand Operations Support
(Chief Accounting Officer)
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CENTURYLINK, INC.
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(UNAUDITED)

Exhibit 12

Nine Months
Ended
September 30, Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in Millions)
(Loss) income before income
taxes and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle $ (10€) 1,25( 94¢ 1,531 813 561
Less: income from equity
investee (12) (15) (23 (16) (29 (13)
Add: estimated fixed charges 1,11C 1,50¢ 1,22: 61= 41¢€ 22¢
Add: estimated amortization of
capitalized interest 11 15 12 2 2 1
Add: distributed income of
equity investee 10 12 14 16 20 16
Less: preferred dividends — — — — — —
Less: interest capitalized (30 (43 (25) 13 (3) #)
Total earnings available for
fixed charges $ 98¢ 2,72 2,15¢ 2,13t 1,231 792
Estimate of interest factor on
rentals $ 11C 14z 12€ 57 48 27
Interest expense, including
amortization of premiums,
discounts and debt issuance
costs 97C 1,31¢ 1,072 54t 367 20C
Interest capitalized 30 43 25 13 3 2
Total fixed charges $ 1,11C 1,50¢ 1,22 61° 41¢ 22¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed
charges (excess of fixed charc
over earnings) (127) 1.81 1.77 3.4 2.94 3.4¢



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Glen F. Post, Ill, Chief Executive Officer anceBident, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi®rQ of CenturyLink, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@émstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsi under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfagia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraiigslosure controls and procedures and presentusi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on

such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssahe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;

and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a signifiodamin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 7, 2013

/s/ GLEN F. POST, llI

Glen F. Post, llI
Chief Executive Officer and President



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., Executive Vice Presidé&tijef Financial Officer and Assistant Secretasgytify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi®rQ of CenturyLink, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financggarting, or caused such internal control overrfagia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraiig&osure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on

such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatf, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer andalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssahe design or operation of internal contradiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;

and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 7, 2013

/sl R. STEWART EWING, JR.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer ad
Assistant Secretary



Exhibit 32

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135@&s Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Each of the undersigned, acting in his capacithasChief Executive Officer or Chief Financial @#r of CenturyLink, Inc.
("CenturyLink™), certifies that, to his knowledgle Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartetesl September 30, 2013 of CenturyLink
fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and tt@information contained in the Form 10-
Q fairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and results of operations of @eyitink as of the dates and for the periods
covered by such report.

A signed original of this statement has been predith CenturyLink and will be retained by Centuniiand furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Dated: November 7, 2013

By: /sl GLEN F. POST, llI

Glen F. Post, IlI
Chief Executive Officer and President

Dated: November 7, 2013

By: /sl R. STEWART EWING, JR.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officada
Assistant Secretary




